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CHAIR GUZMAN:
(gavel)... Good afternoon, I’m Don Guzman, Chair of the
Parks, Recreation, Energy, and Legal Affairs Committee. And welcome everyone
here today. Before we begin, I’d like to introduce our Members that we have at
today’s meeting. We have our Vice-Chair Ms. Kelly King.
.

.

.

VICE-CHAIR KING: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Riki Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Elle Cochran and Yuki Lei Sugimura.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon. And so, before we begin, I’m gonna go ahead and
check-in with our District Offices to see whether there are any testifiers wishing
to testify. And we’ll go ahead and start with Hana Office, Ms. Lono? Okay, I
have been notified that Hana may not be available so we’ll move on to Molokai
District Office. Ms. Alcon?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there’s no one
here waiting to testify.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. And Lanai District Office, Ms. Fernandez?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair.
there is no one waiting to testify.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Turning our attention to the Chambers, has
there... anyone wishing to testify?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, there are four individuals signed up to testify in the
Chamber right now.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Before you begin, I’d like to notify at, anyone
who’s wishing to testify, when you go to the podium please state your name
and/or the organization in which you represent. You’ll have three minutes to
testify only on the items listed on today’s agenda. And once you see the red
blinking light that is you’ll have one minute to conclude your testimony. Go
ahead and call the first testifier please.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Kris Vadla. Hell be testifying on PRL-44.

BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. VADLA: Hello, Chair. Hello, Council. My name’s Kris Vadla with Maui Inline
Hockey Association.
I’m here to talk a little about Maui Inline and our
opportunity to renew our lease down at Kalama Park in Kihei. We have made a
pretty good partnership, very good partnership, with the Parks Department over
the last 20 years since the rink was originally built and we’re a nonprofit
organization that we pretty much run the facility, maintain it with 100 percent
volunteers. And we provide a service to the entire Maui, I guess, as far as inline
hockey with youths and adults and we also open the rink three nights a week to
the public for free skating for just kind of like open skating with music under
the stars and lights. And I don’t know if you all know where the rink is but it’s
literally 40 feet away from the ocean in Kalama Park and just a beautiful place.
Anyway, we are, we’ve got other members here that are involved in the rink and
they’ll tell a little more about the programs and how many people and stuff are
involved. But I was part of the original formation of Maui Inline Hockey
Association maybe 25 years ago and then we played in parking lots, out in the
cane field and then we made, struck a deal with the Parks and we’re able to
lease this land and build this facility with the help of the Parks. And it’s just
been incredible that, for one thing, 20 years has passed so quickly and here we
are, but there is the plan is to renew the lease for another 20 and we’ll keep it
going and keep the partnership going. So, thank you. Please hopefully you’ll
approve our lease. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Members, any questions? Ms. King?
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VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you, Chair. Thanks for being here, Kris

--

MR. VADLA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KING: --and thanks for all the work that your group does. I actually
remember when you first opened ‘cause that’s when my son started skating
there and he’s 30 years old now. So, I just wanted to ask you what your, if you
have regular hours that you are always there on a daily basis for the program?
MR. VADLA: Yeah. We’re primarily during the day. You know, it’s very hot down
there and so most of our activities happen starting around five o’clock with the
youth hockey groups; practices, and games. And so, the facility is used seven
days a week. Sunday is kind of part-time during the year, but it is also used for
adult pick-up hockey.
And then the public skating is 6:00 to 8:00 on
Wednesday nights and then 6:00 to 9:00 on Fridays and Saturdays. And so,
we’re seeing a tremendous amount of young people and families and just a
outrageous turn out of people that use the facility just for open free skating.
And...
VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah, I just, you know, I think it’s so great that you’~re there seven
days a week because I know one of the issues I’m starting to deal with is crime
in that area and so the more
--

MR. VADLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR KING: --partners we have out there in the evening the better.
MR. VADLA: Yeah, well, it’s come a long ways from when we first opened and the park
is really beautiful. There is some, you know, a little bit of riffraff down there,
but it’s getting better.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay. Great. Thank you.
MR. VADLA: Yeah. And I’ve got a, I had kids when I was first doing this, now I have
some young kid again who’s six years old and just started playing so Ill be
involved for a while longer. Thank you. Anything else?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Any other further questions, Members? I have a question. You
mentioned in your testimony that there was a, this is a renewal lease; however,
in my the resolution and other documents that I have reviewed it appears as
though this is the first lease. Is there a correction that needs to be made?
MR. VADLA: I don’t know. Roxanne might... is Roxanne here?
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CHAIR GUZMAN: But you don’t know? Okay. That’s fine. Thank you.
MR. VADLA: I don’t know. Yeah. We\re...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. We’ll clarify that.
MR. VADLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you very much. Next, please?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Susan Yadao.
she’ll be followed by Quinn Brown.

She’ll be testifying on PRL-44 and

MS. YADAO: Aloha, my name is Susan Yadao. I’m the youth coordinator for Maui
Inline Hockey Association. We started there, my husband and I, when our son
was six. He’s now 22 and we have four of our children that are involved in
Maui Youth Hockey. The oldest is 25 all the way to 14. I came a couple
months ago to testify on behalf of the rink because I really think that the
partnership that we have with Maui County is so important and having the
facility open to the hockey players and to the inline skating community is really
wonderful. I volunteer down there, of course with the youth league, but I’m
also there every first Friday of the month serving the public, renting out skates
if they need them for $5, and if they have their own skates they can skate for
free. And I think I had mentioned before we have when times are tough for
families, if they go to the movies, it’s gonna cost them $50. If the kids have
their skates, they can get in and out the door like for 5-$6 to get everybody a
candy bar and a bottle of water, a soda and it’s just a nice thing to offer to the
public. We currently have about 33 people who volunteer down there on a
monthly basis; about 12 youth hockey coaches. There are about 12 to 15
people who help with the monthly volunteering for opening the public skate
nights and then we also have a couple refs that are there and then we have five
who or six or seven that are on the board. And they do a lot of the groundwork
in keeping everything that, you know, replacing our skates or getting new
jersey’s in or whatever it be. And so, we’re really grateful for all the support
that they give us, and I heard somebody mention about security and really
having the lights on at night does brighten up the park because it’s pretty dark
like on that far corner there towards the beach. And so, having our lights on
does promote security and a lot of times if there’s something going on the park
we’ll have teenagers who will come in because they know there’s a mom and a
dad in there and they~re safe; nothing’s gonna go on like we don’t have fights or
anything inside there. Nope, that’s off limits, you know. And so, there’s always
like a mom or a dad keeping eye over that and so it’s a safe place for the kids
and it’s just neat to see them grow up. They come at ten and they’ve got smiles
and, you know, then like they’re 14 and 15 and they’ve like their little boyfriend
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and they~re skating around and it’s really neat. And then you’ll see them a little
bit later and they’ve got, you know, we’ve got hockey players that are now
bringing their kids to play hockey. And so, it’s really a neat place and I’m
grateful--oh sorry--to be a part of Maui Inline Hockey and thank you for your
time.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much for your testimony. Members, do you have
any further questions? Seeing none, I have one quick question.
MS. YADAO: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Do you have vendors on the premises that sell other things other
than like...
MS. YADAO: We do not.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Okay.
MS. YADAO: We have the concession stand and we have sodas and Gatorade and
water, candy bars, and chips, and things like that. And that helps to fundraise
because we do, there are tournaments for inline hockey players to go to and so
we help to fund and sometimes there’s children that can’t afford the ticket to
Oahu or whatever. And so, we help to support them and so we’re, you know,
we’re fundraising that way. And, oh, one more thing, I’m sorry... my son, who’s
14, got to play for Team USA again this summer for the Junior Olympics and
they got gold.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Wow. Congratulations.
MS. YADAO: His team. And he played with people from Florida and Colorado and
they played against Canada which that’s a hard one. So, and he was a product
of Maui Inline Hockey so thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Very good. Thank you. Congratulations.
MS. YADAO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Next, please?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Quinn Brown.
will be followed by Rod Yadao.

He’ll be testifying on PRL-44 and

MS. BROWN: Hi. My name’s Quinn Brown. I am a board member with Maui Inline
Hockey Association and I’m also what Kris and Suzy had said just requesting
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that you folks approve our new lease. We are really fortunate to be in Kalama
Park. We’re fortunate to have the amount of people down there. Right now, we
have our season just started, our hockey season, our fall season, about two
weeks ago. We have two beginner.. .this is all youth right now, two beginner
teams. There’s about 16 kids in that league. We have three teams in our
intermediate, which is about eight years old to about 11, 10 or 11. There’s
probably about 24 kids in that and then we have an advanced league that we
have three teams. There’s 24 kids in that. And then we have adult players and
we have, I think we have eight adult player teams. So, there’s a lot of youth
and adults that are coming through playing hockey at this rink and we’re
blessed to be there and, yeah, just that’s it. Pretty short and sweet, but just
asking for the lease to be renewed so that we can all enjoy it down there. And I
also run one of the... I run every fourth Friday, the public skate. So, we have,
on a good night, probably 300 to 600 people go through that rink on public
skate night in one night. So, like I said before when I testified or did a
testimony, excuse me, several months ago, I feel like we’re kind of a safe haven
for those kids that maybe don’t have parents involved but the parents feel safe
enough to or comfortable enough to send them to our rink and they know that
they’re under watchful eyes and, yeah, so that’s it. Thanks for letting me
speak.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much.
questions? Ms. King?

Hold on.

Members, do you have any

VICE-CHAIR KING: Just a quick question. Thank you. Thank you for being here.
Thanks for all you folks are doing. You said every fourth Friday. Are you
actually doing that on the same day as Fourth Friday? Okay.
MS. BROWN: We do.
VICE-CHAIR KING: So, do you get a lot of parents who drop their kids off and they go
across the street?
MS. BROWN: A lot.
VICE-CHAIR KING: So, you~re the babysitting service for that night?
MS. BROWN: We’re the free babysitting for three hours. It’s great.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Well, I don’t have any little kids anymore, but maybe with my
grand.
(inaudible).
.

.

.
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MS. BROWN: We don’t mind it. We love it. A lot of the kids we know by name. It,
you know, I think theyire comfortable. I think like we’re their second family and
so, yeah, it’s good.
VICE-CHAIR KING: That’s great. Okay.
MS. BROWN: It’s really good.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I have a question. On the public skate night, do you charge?
MS. BROWN: No. The public, well, public skate is free if you have your own roller
skates or rollerblades. If you need to rent a pair for the whole evening, it’s $5.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Great.
MS. BROWN: Yeah? Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
MS. BROWN: You’re welcome.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Next, please?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Rod Yadao. He’s testifying on PRL-44 and is the
last person signed up to testify in the Chamber.
MR. YADAO: Good afternoon. My name is Rod Yadao. I’m also a board member for
Maui Inline and my wife and I and our kids been involved with this place for
about 16 years now. And, so, you know, we’ve watched a lot of kids grow up
from there and also, you know, before, you know, we never used to have any big
parties down there, but now we have a lot of families come every, pretty much
every Friday and Saturday, birthday parties; at least two or three. You know,
they set up their tables outside and then they, you know, send their kids and
even adults come in and they rent skates or they bring their own skates and so
it’s been a good thing I think, you know, for the families ‘cause they know it’s
affordable. It doesn’t cost a lot. It doesn’t, you know, they don’t have to pay
anything to set up their tables there. You know, and so, like Quinn was saying,
we do have a lot of families and lot of kids that come. You know, again, we are
the cheapest babysitters on the island. So, but, you know, yeah, so I am here
on behalf to, you know, for Maui Inline, you know, to get our lease renewed
again. Thank you.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Members, any questions? Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you. I just wanted to ask you what does it cost to buy a
pair of skates? I mean I’m sure they’~re pretty heavy-duty if you’re renting them
out and different people are using them, but how much does it cost you?
MR. YADAO: Well, our rentals skates I think we pay about $100 a pair.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Per pair? Wow.
MR. YADAO: Yeah. Yeah. You know, and it only costs them $5 to rent it and then
like, you know, if they have their own skates it’s free; they don’t have to pay
anything to come in.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Right. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much. Any further questions? Seeing none, thank
you very much for your testimony.
MR. YADAO: Thank you.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else is signed up to testify in the Chamber.
END OF PUBLIC TESTIMOI~Y...

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Also like to welcome Councilmember Atay to the
meeting. Without any objections, Members, I’d like to close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Public testimony is now closed.

PRL-44

AUTHORIZING A GRANT OF LEASE OF COUNTY REAL PROPERTY TO
MAUI IN-LINE HOCKEY ASSOCIATION, INC. (CC 18-333)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Moving on to our first item on today’s agenda which is the lease of
the County real property Maui Inline Hockey Association, Incorporated for the
operation and skate rink at Kalama Park, PRL-44. The Committee is in receipt
of the following: the County Communication 18-333, from the Director of Parks
and Recreation, transmitting a proposed resolution to authorize the lease of the
County real property identified for real property tax purposes as portion tax
map key (2) 3-9-005:052, comprising approximately of 22,796 square feet to the
-9-

PARKS, RECREATION, ENERGY, AND
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 3, 2018

Maui Inline Hockey Association, Incorporated to continuous operation of the
skate rink at Kalama Park, Kihei, Hawaii.
The lease would expire
June 30, 2036.
We are in receipt of the correspondence dated
September 25, 2018, from the Department of Corporation Counsel, transmitting
a revised proposed resolution entitled Authorizing Grant of the Lease of the Real
County Property to Maui Inline Hockey Association, Incorporated. Revised
proposed resolution incorporates non-substantive revisions. The Committee
may consider whether to recommend adoption of the revised proposed
resolution with or without revisions, and the Committee may also consider filing
of the County Communication 18-333 and other related actions. So, today we
have here Roxanne Teshima is our Grant Coordinator from the Department of
Parks and Recreation. We also have available Mr. Walker as well as Marci Sato
and Guy Hironaka from the Finance Department, if you’d like to come down
and present any opening statements that you may have for the Committee. I’ll
go ahead and start with Parks and Recreation if you have any statements or
comments to make on the lease.
MS. TESHIMA: Hello. We would like to request, for your approval, on the proposed
resolution authorizing a grant of lease of County real property to the Maui
Inline Hockey Association, a nonprofit organization. The Maui Inline Hockey
Association has operated the skating rink at Kalama Park since January 1997.
The new lease, their new lease will expire, scheduled to expire, on
June 30, 2036 should it be approved. The State Board of Land and Natural
Resources approve the County of Maui to lease lands under Governor’s
executive order number 854 to the Maui Inline Hockey Association on
July 27, 2018. The Maui Inline Hockey has been a really great partner to our
Department and has supported our mission as well as providing a controlled,
safe, and fun alternative sport for residents and visitors of all ages on Maui.
They provide public skating three nights a week, as you heard, with no
admission charge and skate rentals are available for $5 with the use of safety
equipment free of charge for participants. We would like to also thank you for
providing in this fiscal year’s budget 150,000 appropriation as in a form of a
grant to the Maui Inline Hockey to improve the rink by replacing the dasher
boards and lighting which will comply to the lighting ordinance. Maui Inline
Hockey’s contribution to this project is estimated at 100,000. They’ve been a
really, really good partner and Kris is the president. He’s been one of the
founding members who originally they got a grant when they proposed the
facility from the County also to build the original facility and through this, the
rental of equipment which is minimal they’ve been self-sustaining up to now,
you know. And on the day-to-day maintenance, all their volunteers are
excellent and they’ve really been a really good partner to the County and our
Department. Thank you.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much. And we’ll go ahead and ask comments from
our Finance Department.
We do have a correspondence dated
September 27, 2018, from our Director of Parks and Recreation, transmitting a
correspondence from the Real Property Assessment Division, Department of
Finance.
The fair market rental value per year of the property as of
January 1, 2018 is 50,813. The proposed nominal rental would be $100 per
year as noted in the proposed lease as attached to Exhibit 1 to the proposed
resolution. So, would you like to elaborate more or have any other further
comments, Mr. Walker?
MR. WALKER: Thank you, Chair and Committee Members. No additional comments.
I think that speaks for itself and we’re here to answer any questions you may
have.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. And Ill ask our Deputy Corporation Counsel if
she has any comments that she would to make on the lease itself and/or
pursuant to the executive order, the approvals from the State?
MS. SHEPPARD: No, the BLNR did approve the lease as Roxanne said in July so this
is ready to go forward.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. I’d like to open up the floor to our Members if
they have any questions regarding the lease or any portions of this matter.
Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Not a question, Chairman. It’s more of a request. You
know, what would help us especially with the rink and whatnot components I
would say is photographs. I would love to have as part of the record the current
status of the rink and the lights. We are reinvesting into this area, so I think it
just helps for the record and for us to be aware of the partnership going on.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Teshima, do you have any photos or if not, can you elaborate
further on the conditions of the current rink? And I know that you mentioned
our $150,000 grant that we appropriated through Budget, how is that going in
terms of their, you know, applying for and what needs are going to be met?
MS. TESHIMA: Yeah. I don’t have pictures on hand at the moment. But we do have
pictures and we can provide that to you. And currently, it’s been like 1997, so
it’s like 21 years and the salt, right next to the ocean so the saltwater has
corroded the surrounding of the skate rink and so that’s what they’re gonna be
replacing with the new grant. And thank you for that. So, it should be a really
safe facility with that improvements.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: For me, Chair, yeah, it also helps because I think one
of the testifiers brought up the point about the lights and the safety aspect. I
think those photographs will really help the Members appreciate those concerns
we’re trying to address and mitigate ‘cause you can’t see it off a surveyor’s map,
you know. But maybe with some photographs we can appreciate how this
project is gonna mitigate certain other issues, so.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
What we could do is can the Department supply us with
photographs and details of what is going to be repaired before first reading if
this passes out of Committee?
MS. TESHIMA: Yes, we could.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions may have? Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: I don’t really have any questions. I just wanted to make a
comment that I have a really clear picture in my mind of what the place looks
like and what it looked the first time I went down there with my kids. I think
my son was 11 or 12 and the whole place was lit up because we didn’t have
anything like that before and there were people down there all interacting and,
you know, they have organized games. So, yeah, I think it would be good for
folks who don’t live in that area to see, you know, what a wonderful addition
that has become for that park. But, I hope it doesn’t hold up us passing this
out. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Any further questions? I have a question. One of the
testifier had mentioned that there was a prior lease, but in the record, I don’t
believe I’ve seen the prior lease. Is there...
MS. TESHIMA: It expired. It was executed in 1997.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ninety-seven? And expiration?
MS. TESHIMA: And it expired and so it took some time to get to this point ‘cause we
had to go to the board for approval and that process took a while. But now
we’ve come to, yeah, this point where we first get the State approval, then we
get your approval.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right. Correct.
MS. TESHIMA: So...
CHAIR GUZMAN: But when did the first lease expire?

-
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MS. TESHIMA: It expired I believe in 2012.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Twenty twelve?
MS. TESHIMA: I believe so. I think it’s like...
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, they had been operating without a lease since 2012?
MS. TESHIMA: Well, they’ve been on a permit basis.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Permit basis?
MS. TESHIMA: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. And the permit basis was per annum? Per year?
MS. TESHIMA: Annual, yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. On Corporation Counsel on the, on Exhibit A
we’re talking about waivers to be completed by non-members, is that, are those,
do those waivers also include waivers of any claims against the County?
MS. SHEPPARD: I don’t have their waivers, Chair. Their waivers would be to protect
them, but we have an insurance requirement and indemnification requirements
in the general terms and conditions of the lease.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. And...
MS. SHEPPARD: That protects the County.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And the amount is? Two mu?
MS. SHEPPARD: The insurance requirement is $1 million

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh a mu?
MS. SHEPPARD: --per incident and $2 million in the aggregate.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh aggregate, 2 mu. Okay. Very good. Okay. So, I have no other
further questions. So, does any other Member have questions? So, at this
time, the Chair’s recommendation is to adopt the lease, the resolution to
approve the lease and the Chair will recommend, will entertain a motion for the
adoption of the proposed resolution entitled Authorizing a Grant of a Lease of
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County Real Property to Maui Inline Hockey Association, Incorporated; and
filing of the County Communication 18-333.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, Staff would just note that there is a revised resolution
transmitted by Corporation Counsel dated September 25, 2018.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, as a, just a friendly amendment, Fil just incorporate
September 25, 2018 as the revised resolution authorizing the grant of the lease.
VICE-CHAIR KING: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Second.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Moved by Ms. King, seconded by Ms. Sugimura.
discussion? All those in favor, say “aye.”

Any further

COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR GUZMAN: All those opposed, say “no.” We have seven “ayes,” two excused.
The motion carries.

VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Guzman,
Vice-Chair
King,
Councilmembers Atay, Cochran, Crivello,
Hokama, and Sugimura.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION OF REVISED RESOLUTION AND FILING
OF COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Members.
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PRL-30

WAIEHU
MUNICIPAL
IMPROVEMENTS (MISC)

GOLF

COURSE

OPERATIONS

AND

CHAIR GUZMAN: Moving on to the next item. And if we could have our Parks
Department in relation to the golf course and their staff come forward? Okay,
Members, next item on today’s agenda is PRL-30, the Waiehu Municipal Golf
Course Operations and Improvements. As we’ve stated, the Committee is in
receipt of the following as indicated in the agenda, Miscellaneous
Communication dated May 22, 2017, Communication dated February 2, 2018,
also the correspondence dated July 12, 2017, from the Department of
Corporation Counsel, transmitting a proposed bill entitled A Bill for an
Ordinance Amending Section 13-16-040 [sic], Maui County Code, Relating to
the Waiehu Municipal Golf Course Special Fund. Also, number four, the
correspondence dated February 7, 2018, from the Department of Corporation
Counsel, transmitting the proposed bill entitled A Bill for an Ordinance
Repealing Section 13-16-040 [sic], Maui County Code, Relating to the Golf
Course Special Fund.
Also, number five is correspondence dated
February 21, 2018, from the Department of Corporation Counsel ,transmitting
the proposed bill entitled A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Chapter 13.16 of
Maui County Code, relating to the Waiehu Municipal Golf Course. The purpose
of the proposed bill is to update the management and operations of the Waiehu
Municipal Golf Course. The Committee may also receive an updated from the
Department of.. .from the Parks Department and Recreation regarding the
recent, completed renovations of the back nine greens to the seashore
paspalum. The Committee may also discuss management operations of the golf
course. So, what we.. .we have here today are, is the golf course superintendent
Todd Allen. Why don’t you go ahead and begin with any opening comments
that you may have. Well go ahead, Members, in terms of the agenda we will
address the number five item first; and that is the correspondence dated
February 21, 2018 as well as an update of the renovations. Mr. Allen?
MR. ALLEN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Council. I just wanted to say we had a
very successful summer. If you don’t mind, I have a few people that I would
like to thank for the success that we had. Hawaiian Turf Grass for providing us
with outstanding product, Maui EKO Compost, all the support from the
community, especially the golfing community, Parks and Rec Department as a
whole, beautification staff was instrumental in helping us complete this project,
construction maintenance, the operations clerks in the starter’s booth for their
patience and perseverance, Art Rego and his staff, and then last and definitely
not the least important would be my golf course staff that we have on property.
These guys came together, as a team, and did outstanding things. So, I just
wanted to thank everybody for their hard work and support during the whole
project. You want me to go ahead and do the presentation?

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Go ahead and proceed.
BEGIN PRESENTATION...
MR. ALLEN: Okay, so I’ve taken a few pictures of some of the greens. I tried to find
pictures of the greens beforehand at the same, around the same timeframe,
September, October so that you could see kind of a comparison. This was
number 12 green before the renovations; and these pictures aren’t altered in
any way, shape, or form. It’s just two different cameras. And this is number 12
after the renovations. We did the approach area which is directly in front of the
green. We did the collar out to the bunkers all the way around and then the
green itself. So, 50 feet out from the front of the green was done on the entire
back nine. So, we did a total of two acres of turf renovations in-house. This is
13 green before; a little herbicide spraying there by the cart path where they
were trying to eradicate some weeds. And this is 13 green afterwards. This is
the first group out on the Saturday that we opened and it was an exciting day;
everyone was ecstatic. Fifteen green before, overlooking the ocean; and this is
15 green complex after. You can see the dramatic color difference in the
paspalum grass and then the old Bermuda and the goosegrass. So, that’s the
main reason that we’ve chosen this grass is the color, the longevity, the ability
to mow it at all different heights and it adapts to it. And the use of salt as a
herbicide instead of some of the harsher chemicals that are out there. This is
16 green before and 16 green afterwards. Seventeen green before and 17 green
afterwards. You know, obviously I would have a ton more pictures, but just to
try to speed things up it’s just kind of a snapshot of the two acres that we did.
Overall it turned out very well and I’m extremely proud of what we’ve
accomplished. So...
END PRESENTATION...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Are you completed?
MR. ALLEN: Yeah, that’s it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: What about our, do you have any updates on the financial portion
of the golf course as we currently stand?
MR. ALLEN: We, as far as the revenue for last year, every year for the last three years,
we’ve increased revenue on the golf course and we did not, while we may not
have captured the total amount of revenue that we could’ve, we weren’t short
from the previous year. So, we were at... sorry, give me a second. We were at
826,000 in golfing revenue for this last year, FY ‘18. And then for 2017, we
were roughly 799,000, same timeframe.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, do you think the improvements on the back nine will
help generate more revenue?
MR. ALLEN: Absolutely will help generate more revenue. Once the front nine is
completed, there will be a substantial difference in the putting surface which is
primarily where the majority of your shots are played and it’ll be weed-free
which has been the major, one of the major problems at the golf course
currently.
CHAIR GUZMAN: When do you anticipate starting the front nine?
MR. ALLEN: The front nine pending weather and all of the changes coming up, it
would be April. We would want to start in April and May for the planting and
have that same growing window.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, currently all 18 holes are in operation?
MR. ALLEN: Correct. Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Until April?
MR. ALLEN: Yes. That’s correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And then you’ll close down the front nine?
MR. ALLEN: That would be the plan. Yes. We would want to close the front nine the
first part of April, mid-April, and then start with the renovations. So, the actual
prep work that we did in-house with the beautification staff took a week and a
half, about nine, ten days. And then the planting we did in three phases. It
took, we did three greens at a time and that took three days and then by
June 7th we had all two acres planted and were in the process of heaving
watering. And then within 12, the 12-week window, 13-week window we had
everything that was up and ready for play. We just had a few of those storms
roll through, the hurricanes. So, that kind of set things back a little bit. But, it
is extremely possible to do the same on the front nine.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Do we have any plans? I guess we’ll take a comment from
our Planner in the Parks Department. Do you have any comments?
MR. YAMASHITA: No. No comments.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Karma, do you have any comments? Okay. So, Members, I’m
gonna go ahead and open up the floor to any questions that you may have on
the improvements. Ms. King?
-
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VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you, Chair. I just had a question on the revenue. We’re
looking at the fifth document, document five?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: We’ll get into that as soon as... ‘cause we’re just looking at the...
VICE-CHAIR KING: Oh, we’re just.. .oh, okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR KING: I thought you brought up the revenue so I was gonna ask about
that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, you can ask about the revenues if you’d like.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Oh, okay. I was just curious. The last, the 2016 and 2017 don’t
have it broken down. They~re just like a lump sum. Is that like to come or are
some of those categories eliminated on this document? It has like all these
different tourist weekend, tourist weekday, resident weekend, then for 2016 and
2017 this document just has like a lump sum?
MR. ALLEN: We do have the breakdown if you would like to have that.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Well, the thing I was curious about was, you know, the rounds of
golf from one year to the next going down, did that have to do with the
renovation or is it just is that the usual fluctuation from one year to the next?
MR. ALLEN:
No, we are currently experiencing a decrease in rounds. As the
correlation that I see is as the price increases per round in the categories then
the amount of golfers or the frequency that they play decreases. So, currently
the residents, everyday resident, has decreased the most from the years that
you have in question. Seniors are decreasing slower. The tourist rate and the
tourist presence is increasing a little bit more, not by a whole lot, but maybe
500 more tourists. It was a good year for tourism this year, this last year.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Do you anticipate that tourism will go up and maybe even
residential now that we have, the grounds are being upgraded?
MR. ALLEN: Yes. Once, I would think that it would go up a little bit now, but once
everything is completed it should go up a lot more.
-
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VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay. That looks great.
MR. ALLEN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you. Thanks. Good work. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Question, if the Members don’t mind.
online booking, is that fully operational now?

The booking,

MR. ALLEN: We’re still in the process of getting the RFP out there. It’s complete. All
departments have signed off on it so we’re in the process of getting ready to put
it out for bid. We’re not doing, at this time, only thing we’ve done differently is
accept credit cards. So, we’re still the two-day, call in two days beforehand or
show up at the window and book your reservation.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, the issue on the Internet connections is resolved?
MR. ALLEN: The issue with the Internet connection is resolved. We have a direct feed
in for the starter’s booth. So, that’s working very well.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions, Members, on the
improvements of the golf course? Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Thank you, Chair. So, I went to visit the golf course
unannounced. I just went Saturday afternoon. What I read in the paper that
the back nine was going to open and I want to thank Art Rego, he put me in his
golf cart and he took me around the entire golf course and kind of explained to
me. It was really exciting, and people were golfing. I will tell you, I was telling
superintendent when I was walking in, that the feedback I heard from the
golfers who came back and they, too, were excited about the back nine being
open, they said they have never seen it nicer in 50 years. How’s about that?
And this other golf team, I guess, they said during the restoration that their
team hadn’t played there, they play every Wednesday, but he was gonna
schedule again for them to come back. So, that was exciting just to see that
and I got an explanation from Art about, as best as he could, about what was
going on. Such a beautiful golf course and I don’t golf so, probably some of the
other Members who actually golf will have another appreciation for it, like
• yourself, Chair. But, one of the comments that I heard from the golfers, was
only two groups that I talked to, but they were saying they hope that we didn’t
shut down the front nine the way that we did the back nine and that, I don’t
know, you guys know it better, but to kind of do it in, you know, groupings, I
guess
--
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CHAIR GUZMAN: In phases.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --so that it doesn’t just shut down the whole, well,
shut them down from golfing the way that it did. But, in general, I mean
everybody should go look at it. It’s amazing. I mean the pictures really do tell
the story and I have it in my camera. I posted it on Facebook. I got lot of
comments back and I feel really proud of what you’ve accomplished and I wish I
had your e-mail ‘cause I would’ve sent you an e-mail or called you just to say
congratulations. It’s a huge accomplishment.
MR. ALLEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA:
The pictures are beautiful and the course is
beautiful. So, thank you for your hard work and dedication to the residents of
Maui County and for the work that you’ve done. Thank you.
MR. ALLEN: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I’d like to welcome Ms. Crivello to the meeting. I know you were
here earlier. Yeah, I’d also like to echo Ms. Sugimura’s compliments. My
daughter and her brothers, my two sons, went this last Saturday and I didn’t
have the opportunity to go with them. But, they heard the buzz so they
actually went to go play on Saturday and my daughter came back and said,
dad, that course, the back nine is awesome and she’s played all over the
country; the greens are exceptional. So, very good. Good job. I think you’ll
eventually get more people coming once... ‘cause the greens are that’s the bread
and butter right there.
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: If you can get great greens, people will play. Fairways can be okay,
but if you’ve got the greens, that’s the bread and butter. Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR JUNG: Yeah thank you, Chair. I just thought of another question I
wanted to ask you earlier. Do you have an issue with nene birds coming out
there?
MR. ALLEN: We don’t necessarily have an issue with them. However, during the
renovation, it was the first time that I had seen them out in the three years,
three-and-a-half years. They were on number 17 green. They were on this
green eating some of our fresh, healthy, brand new grass and enjoying it. But,
no, generally we do not have an issue.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Oh, okay. I just wondered because...
-
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MR. ALLEN: It was nice to see them fly in and then fly back out.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah, I remember those

--

MR. ALLEN: It was kind of a migratory...
VICE-CHAIR KING: --years ago when that one golfer got fined for taking a swing at
one with a golf club. So, I didn’t know if that you were having them, but they
did shut down our operations in one field on the sunflower field ‘cause it looked
like one was nesting and DLNR caine in and told us not to do anything around
it ‘til they could figure it out.
MR. ALLEN:
do

Right.

We just left the nene alone.

Let them do what they needed to

--

VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah.

.

.

.

(inaudible).

MR. ALLEN: --and then they flew in for a period of about a week and then every day
about the same time and then flew back out and we haven’t seen them since.
We only have the one local duck down on number two, a Muscovy duck, and
other than that not much problems.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Good.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, why don’t we go ahead and get into the third bill which is
numbered number five, the correspondence dated February 21, 2018 and this
is the bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 13.16, Maui County Code,
relating to the Waiehu Municipal Golf Course. Apparently, this is an update for
the management and operation of the golf course. And as I’m reviewing it, we
did review this prior to the Budget and we never got back to it because we had
some issues with the residency requirement and I believe it was Ms. King or one
of the Members had questioned whether or not they needed to have lesser
restrictions on the proof of residency as we were requiring a voluminous
amount of documentation.
And I think we went back and we changed,
amended it to just a current, valid driver’s license containing a County of Maui
address. Also, the other issue that was brought forward in the Committee and
I’m just refreshing everybody’s memory is that we were adding a new definition
of special events. So, this would also allow, I believe, other events that could be
permitted on the golf course as meant in the permit process outlined in Chapter
13.04A of this Code. I think this is somewhat similar to what they have in
Lanai where they would have weddings and things like that permitted. You
might need to clarify or refresh our memory of what exactly the special events
section is in this bill. But, why don’t we go and ask Ms. Sheppard if she can go
-
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through the various changes or amendments just to refresh the Committee’s
memory because it’s been quite... several months since we’ve last looked at this
bill.
MS. SHEPPARD: Thank you, Chair.
one who knows the details.

I’d like to defer to Ms. Karla Peters.

She’s the

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Ms. Peters, if we can go starting on the first page there. This
is just, these are just amendments that you’re incorporating from the existing
ordinances. And if we could go down, it looks as though on the definitions you
are deleting daily rates. This is one the first page, Members, the bottom of the
first page. You’re deleting daily rate, means the rate charged for the privilege of
playing 18 holes or a fraction thereof of the golf course if play begins from the
time the golf course opens until 1:00 p.m. And then you’re adding a new
definition of department means Department of Parks and Recreation and so and
so forth. So, you have, it looks like minimal type of amendments here, but you
might want to go ahead and explain, there’s not very many amendments, but it
looks as though we need to refresh our memories.
MS. PETERS: Thanks, Chair. I’m gonna defer to Todd. He’s gonna give...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Allen. Okay.
MR. ALLEN: Correct. As far as the daily rates, trying to take the definition out, we
were just trying to simplify it. There was a lot of duplication, triplication in the
administrative rules. So, we were trying to just have it underneath each
individual definition as far as who’s playing. That’s pretty self-explanatory and
then the twilight rate, of course, would come into effect between 1:00 and
3:00 p.m. every day, depending on when we want to do it. Department means
Department of Parks and Recreation, correct. We were trying to simplify that.
For the Director, it was only for the Director and then we wanted to put in
where the Director’s authorized representatives so someone else could act in his
behalf
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: --as appointed.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Hawaii resident.
MR. ALLEN: Hawaii resident was just to have a valid State of Hawaii driver’s license.
We have a lot of people that are Hawaii residents that try to come in with
different forms of identification and we’re just trying to simplify it; if you have a
State of Hawaii ID or driver’s license, that suffices.
As far as a major
-
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tournament, we’re deleting consists of a minimum of 100.. .was it 138 players or
more? And then we were making it 144 confirmed players.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, I see what you did. You’re actually, the original definition
requires a Statewide or local or locally-sponsored.
MR. ALLEN: No. No, I’m sorry.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Is that what...
MR. ALLEN: It’s the opposite.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, okay. Okay. I see.
MR. ALLEN: Consists.. .we were deleting consists of a minimum of 144 confirmed
players. We want to make it a major tournament meaning that you, if you have
a major tournament you pay $18 per player or whatever our fee is for that year.
It would be Statewide or a locally-sponsored event consisting of 138 players or
more is my understanding of what we were gonna put in.
CHAIR GUZMAN: No, that’s actually you’re deleting 138 players or more and you’re
replacing 138 with a minimum of 144. Yeah. So, you’re increasing the players,
right?
MR. ALLEN: That is an error, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: That’s an error?
MR. ALLEN: It’s opposite.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, you meant to decrease the players?
MR. ALLEN: Currently, the only way that you could hold a tournament is if you are a
Maui County resident. So, we were trying to make it so that if you’re coming
from Oahu or Kauai or the Big Island or the softball league guys, they come
over all the time from different islands, we wanted to be able to have them have
tournaments too with sponsorships.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, what you’re.. .okay, so it should read major tournament
means any event that involves players Statewide or is a locally-sponsored event
consisting of a minimum of 144 confirmed players?
MR. ALLEN: One-hundred and thirty-eight.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thirty-eight. Okay. Okay.
MR. ALLEN: Yes. Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
quick...

So, that’s the reverse.

So, it’s underscored.

So, Members, just a

MR. ALLEN: That was what was confusing to me, too because...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Just a quick clarification. So, the bracket is actually, everything
that’s in the bracket should be underscored; that’s adding. And then the
underscored should be bracketed so that’s deleting. So, deleting should be
consists of a minimum of 144 confirmed players. Okay, Members? Okay.
Okay, moving on, we have the Maui County residents and I recall specifically we
had issues with this because it looks like you are deleting apply to the
Department of Parks and Recreation for residency status, who has provided
documentary proof with the person, filed a Hawaii resident’s income tax return
with the year preceding the application and also resides in the County for the
entire year immediately preceding the application. Application materials shall
be available for the following alternative format. Upon request, large format
audio tapes and specified language.. .1 don’t know what all that is. You’re
supposed to have all that in order to prove that you ~re a resident?
MR. ALLEN: Correct. That’s the...
CHAIR GUZMAN: And you’re deleting all that?
MR. ALLEN: That’s the current administrative rules. So, we’re trying to delete all that
and just if you have a Hawaii, valid Hawaii State driver’s license or ID, you~re a
resident.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And on your driver’s license it contains...
MR. ALLEN: It contains a Maui County, Lanai,

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Resident?
MR. ALLEN: --Molokai address, you’re a Maui County resident.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. And so, what if you don’t have a driver’s license?
MR. ALLEN: We would take State ID or, you know, just a regular ID.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN:

So, then, okay, so let me help you out. A current valid State of

Hawaii identification or driver’s license.
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: Because at the DMV you have to provide your records already stating
that you’ve lived here for a year or more so that’s an additional verification
process that we don’t need to go through.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
in...

Members, this is a friendly amendment.

Is it alright if I just add

COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
checked my license right
address. Okay. I have
instance with a P.O. Box.
verify residency. So...

I understand the direction, Chairman, but I just
now. My license is a P.O. Box. It’s not a street
an issue with the license with only like for in my
That’s not good enough even for me for my license to

CHAIR GUZMAN: This is where we got stuck last time.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because part of the voting document, too,
to put a street address, Chairman, not just a mailing address.
confirm a location of residency, not just where you pick up mail or
guys put 200 South High Street? Does everybody know this is
Building and not just another street address for residency?

is you have
You must
what if 100
the County

MR. ALLEN: What we were trying to do away with is us...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: This is not for you. This is for attorneys to deal with.
MR. ALLEN: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So, I just bring it up, that component of concern
for me if we’re gonna use the driver’s license that has no street address on it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Sheppard?

-
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MS. SHEPPARD: Yes, thank you, Chair. For purposes of allowing somebody to play
as a Maui County resident fee, as long as they present an identification and
whether this should be limited to driver’s license or expanded to State of Hawaii
identification, that’s fine. Containing a Maui County address, it doesn’t have to
be a residential street address. It can be a P.O. Box address because it’s gonna
be vetted by the DMV that it’s a legitimate residence for receipt of mail and
purposes of residency, that’s acceptable to the Parks Department. It’s legal.
It’s not illegal.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, a P.O. Box would count as a residency.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Would they be legal to be registered to vote?
MS. SHEPPARD: This doesn’t deal with registration to vote.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I’m not asking, but I’m saying does it, if it make sense
‘cause for me I have my own lines of standards. Okay. And what I’m hearing is
not good enough for me, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Is there an additional alternative or... so if a person comes in with
their driver’s license that has a P.O. Box, is there another layer to determine
whether or not that person is actually a resident aside from going and getting
your real property tax papers like the original language has?
MR. ALLEN: No, Chair. That was the whole point is the DMV has already verified that
you are an actual resident in order to get your license or your State ID, you
have to prove to them, another County facility, that you are a resident. So, we
were trying to keep us from having to do that at the starter’s booth and
collecting people’s tax documentation and just use a driver’s license as
verification or a State ID.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, accordingly the DMV, if you place on your driver’s license a
P.O. Box and my P.O. Box says Kauai, I am not a resident of Maui?
MR. ALLEN: That’s correct. If it’s Kauai, yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you. I recall I had a P... or my business’
address on my driver’s license and I had gotten pulled over and the officer said I
need to put my physical address which is a, Honolua Valley. I don’t have mail
delivery so that’s what I put on my driver’s license. So, my current driver’s
license has Field Road 52, Honolua Valley because that’s where I live; on a
pineapple field road. So, that’s legally what’s on there ‘cause physically that’s
-
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where I live, but my mail doesn’t go there. So, that’s what I was told by an
officer at least eight years ago to change it and I had it changed ‘cause they
weren’t accepting that I had put a business address on my driver’s license. So,
I don’t know if that’s across the board or so that’s what I know what happened
with my driver’s license.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Actually, that’s sounds like a similar story for myself. I had mine
renewed like four years ago and prior to that I had a P.O. Box and they didn’t
accept it, so I had to.. .when I renewed it they made me put my physical
address. But, Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: Was your, Chair, was your P.O. Box registered to your business?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KING: ‘Cause I think that’s the difference. It’s, if it’s registered to a
business, they don’t accept it on your driver’s license. If it’s registered to you
personally, then they would accept it as proof of your residency.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, my P.O. Box was

--

VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --attached to my business.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah, so you can’t, even if it’s a street address, you can’t put the
street address of your business on your driver’s license.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: But we’re trying to determine if you live on Maui, in
Maui County. If it says Lanai, Hawaii, Lanai City, Hawaii 96763 or whatever
your zip code is, it can say P.O. Box; I think that’s how Lanai residents decide.
Well, from what I’ve seen it’s all P.O. Boxes. So, would that be okay?
CHAIR GUZMAN: I guess the issue would be is there any way that someone could, I
wouldn’t say cheat, but, you know, misrepresent that they are a resident by
putting a P.O. Box on their driver’s license?
MR. ALLEN: Chair, that’s what, that’s actually what we’re trying to stop because
currently we have people that come in with partial or they come in with utility
bills for a year even though they~re a rental vacation, rental home and they can’t
get, they~re not able to get a driver’s license so they try to show us different
types of identification that fall within the administrative rules. So, we’re trying
-
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to keep them from working around that system. If they want to be a Maui
County resident then they need to get a driver’s license or a State ID and the
County facility, the DMV, vets all that and they take care of that issue for us
rather than us at the starter’s booth trying to do that on our own. We don’t
have a way of verifying it through our staff. Before, I believe, they used to come
to the County Building and check in at the tax office and the tax office would
verify it, but it’s still an extensive process for the majority of people. If they’re
golfers, they’ve got to get to the golf course somehow so theyire probably driving
or riding with someone. I would think that they, the majority of people would
have a driver’s license or at least an identification.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, just for moving forward, Members, I’m just gonna ahead
and friendly amend this section right here that language to a current valid State
of Hawaii identification or a driver’s license containing a County of Maui
address. And so that we can just move on with the rest of the sections.
VICE-CHAIR KING: No objections.
CHAIR GUZMAN: No objections, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Valid.

.

.

(inaudible).

CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, yes, valid.
MR. ALLEN: Yes, correct. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Valid.
MR. ALLEN: We just had a gentleman come in yesterday that just tried to show us his
voter registration card and nothing else and we had to turn him away. We get it
all day, every day where people are trying to get around the system and pay the
wonderful rate of $18 or $23 as opposed to the other rates.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, moving on to the next...
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, Miss...

-
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MS. NAKATA: So, similar, a revision would be made to Hawaii resident to insert
identification or...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. Yes. Thank you. So, moving on to the next page, please. It
looks like you’re deleting the Maui County residency card? That whole section
and the, you~re also deleting nine-hole rate and you’~re also deleting non-Maui
County residents. So, why are you deleting all that?
MR. ALLEN: Correct. The Maui County resident card with the newer tee-sheet
programs that are.. .the majority of them aren’t utilizing an additional card.
Once you’ve registered into the system and you’ve been verified by operations
clerk or whoever verifies that information then you’re locked in at that rate.
And as you play, it’s recorded. As your birthday changes, you turn 60 then it
records that you’re now a senior, you get a different rate so we no longer use
the Maui County resident card.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Okay. So, moving on to the non-resident. So, you’re just
deleting non-Maui County?
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Adding...
MR. ALLEN: State of Hawaii has its own rate.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. And then senior citizens, and this is important, so what are
you doing here? Means any person who has attained the age of 60 years and is
deleting, now you’re deleting permanent Maui... is a Maui County or Hawaii
resident as defined in this chapter. Okay.
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Alright.
clarify further on.

Special events.

So, this is what I was wanting you to

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you for allowing me, my.. .this indulgence. How
did you, how did we decide 60 is the number for a senior?
MR. ALLEN: That was the number that has been in this document for as long as I’ve
looked back, so.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no, and again, yeah, because depends where I go,
sometimes I’m a senior or actually I qualify and sometimes I don’t. You know,
some say 65, some say 62, some
.(inaudible).
go 60. And so, you know,
I’m just hoping we can find one number we can all agree that’s the number for
a senior. Right now, it seems to be we have a range of years that makes it a
senior or not. So, I just want to make sure we have some kind of standing that
we can defend. If this is the number, we can defend it. This 60 is the right
number for us as far as this rate structure and this program.
.

.

.

.

MR. ALLEN: Correct. And it mostly applies to Maui County residents. So, I would...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Any other County program that has different
components, whether it be like Kaunoa or
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Office of Aging.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --aging, you know, so

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: What’s the average?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --just say we have a senior program and you go okay
I’m 60 and you go no you don’t qualify ‘til you 65, you know.
MR. ALLEN: I am... sorry, Chair and Councilmembers, I am unfamiliar with what their
age range is.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Corp. Counsel, do you happen to know?
MR. ALLEN: I’ve got a number from the back it is 60 as well for the other Parks and
Rec.
MS. SHEPPARD: All I know is the age of majority in Hawaii is designated as 18.
don’t know that there is a senior age designated.

I

CHAIR GUZMAN: So, it can be...
MS. SHEPPARD: I know when you get your shingles shot, you get the senior citizen
shingles shot at age 50 and above. So, it depends.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I know. My doctor said senior and I hit 65 I still don’t
have that shot.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Hokama, you gotta get the shot.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I agree. I’m waiting for my, that green light of say take
it.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
time.

Oh, maybe Mr. Baz knows ‘cause he was in MEO for quite some

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
right, our bus

Chair, if we can standardize ‘cause even for the bus

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: No, I agree. I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --we have a senior fare, so.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, what is our senior age range for our bus system and overall
for our County facilities and services?
MR. I3AZ: So, Mr. Chair, for the majority of Kaunoa, even Kaunoa has split ages, for a
majority of them they are 60. And lot of it’s based on the Federal programs that
we get the funding for and so the Federal program will set the actual age
restriction for that. But, the general accepted senior age for Kaunoa is 60.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Yes, there are a varied number of different age as well.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, 60 is the magic number.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. No, sorry. Sorry for that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: No. No problem.
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair, you also asked about transportation, for the bus system it’s
55.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, see , Chairman, that’s my point. Is we use different
numbers for different.. .for the same term, senior. And that’s why maybe there’s
confusion.
CHAIR GUZMAN: But then if you drop it down to 55, that means we... ‘cause they
have the senior rate, right? So, our revenues...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
55?

But, how many people are really so-called retired at

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: I know. There aren’t very many people.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: They~re in their second employment, Chairman, a lot of
them.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. I don’t mind if we drop it down to 55. That’s like.. .but, okay,
we’ll move on.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Chair? Well, yeah, I know, I’ve actually taken classes at Kaunoa
before where there was a limit of 55 and they gave me an exception because
they were gonna have to cancel the class and so my friends who were 55 were
calling me up asking me if I would join. But, the senior age for tennis is 50.
So, if you turn 50 by a certain age, you can play in the senior league. But, I
was gonna ask if anybody knows what the senior, what AARP considers the
senior age? Is it 55? Yeah, that’s what I thought.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Fifty-five for AARP. Okay. So, moving on to the special events,
you~re gonna need to explain further ‘cause this is a new provision.
MR. ALLEN: Thank you, Chair. So, for the special events, we were looking at trying to
create other ways to make revenue and one of the things would be the
possibility of a community center or creating a community area in the back of
the clubhouse we currently have which is the, a pretty big room that we could
maybe hold different functions. There could be classes, you know, various such
things that the community could rent it out for.
We’re also looking at
producing a wedding site and possible reception area. So, it was along the lines
of with the new tee sheet-program, the website, online advertising, and the
potential of improving the golf course long term including the possibility of a
new clubhouse where do we want the administrative rules to go. And that was
one of the things that was identified. We currently only have rates for club noshow fee, residents, seniors, student golf, visitors, et cetera. We don’t have
anything if we want to try to create a special event or function.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. I see. So, just allowing you to diversify

--

MR. ALLEN: Yes. Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
--the use as well as.. .the Chapter 13.04 is also part of the
permitting and also has the concession provisions in there. So, this would be
under what Mr. Hokama had introduced prior a few years ago, our concession
bill? Okay. To be able to utilize that? Okay. Very good.
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Any questions on this? This is a new section, Members, to allow
special events under a concession, under our concession provisions in
Chapter 13.04A. So, any questions on that? Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I’m happy to hear that this component of
the Department is trying to move forward. I would say in conjunction to us
working on this ordinance revamp, I would already ask the program to go out
and put out an RFP for proposals of special events, whatever it be. Go ahead
and have them submit to us what they think they can do on our property.
Okay. Instead of us go out for one specific, we’re looking for a vendor who will
do wedding, you know, let’s go tell, ask them; we have this size of land, tell us
and we have it’s a basically a recreational, part of a health component for us in
keeping the community healthy through one form of physical use. What are
your thoughts? And I would rather hear back from them and we can adjust the
ordinance accordingly. But, I think as part of the concession, this is exactly
what I envisioned; let the private sector tell us what they think makes sense
and can be financially smart. And then we’ll... and then, for us, we would then
pick and choose the best for what we feel is can fit up there, with that
community, with that location. ‘Cause I get it, we have a tremendous location
and location sells. Okay. And part of the project can increase also probably
maybe do traffic within and through Waiehu/Waihee area.
MR. ALLEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, I see multiple benefits, yeah. Eventually we’re
gonna need to work through Happy Valley. Okay. So, we know where the
bottlenecks are, but this is areas that will help us generate money and activity
to make projects work. So, I’m asking you to move it forward in advance of us
finishing up this legislation. Let’s go find out what’s out there. We may be
surprised.
MR. ALLEN: Excellent recommendation, Councilmember.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That would be my suggestion, Chair.
counties tried it that way.

I think other

CHAIR GUZMAN: I foresee that it’s.. .yeah, I’m with you, Mr. Hokama. I think we have
the best vistas on any course and if they can renovate that front nine, wow. I
can imagine like hole six could be, you know, off to the side there; right there is
beautiful. But, we’ll see. I mean, at least this is innovative in order to utilize
the vending provisions that we’ve passed in the last three years.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Oh and, Chairman, why don’t we ask the Department
to also think about this changing of structure also if it makes sense. Okay. I
don’t have a problem looking at a vendor that will do food services, golf services,
and special events services. Okay. I don’t need just one restaurant vendor,
just one cart vendor, you know. I mean, for some if they can do a consortium
and make it more beneficially smart then we should allow those type of options
to be submitted to the County for consideration, maybe as a package
Well, we can make our.. .if we get package. If you just ask me to do a
restaurant, I’m sorry, the numbers just cannot work for us. So, let’s go see
what’s out there and change how we putting out those proposals too.
-

MR. ALLEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And then, so no other questions
on that section? Okay. Moving on, the student, so you~re changing, a student
will now be considered.. .let’s see.. .under 19?
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, why are we going from 18 to 19? Because that’s the student
rate, yeah?
MR. ALLEN: Yes. Student rate. We do have some students who are still in school at
19 and have a student ID so we’re trying to fall in lines with their age and the
student ID. We still verify that they have a school ID and that they are a
registered student.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, but here in the definition it doesn’t show that you need to have
a student ID. It just says a full-time basis. So, you’re verifying that theyire
full-time basis?
MR. ALLEN: Correct. Yes, we do.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Members, do you have any questions as to the change of the,
I guess what’s considered a student from 18 to 19?
VICE-CHAIR KING: Chair? I have a question because there’s no definition of school
so does that mean if someone’s in college and they’re 19 they can still
--

MR. ALLEN: No.
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VICE-CHAIR KING: --so maybe there needs to be.. .you’re talking about up through
high school, right?
MR. ALLEN: It is up through high school and it’s

--

VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: --it’s not been a problem, Councilmember. When they arrive at the
starter’s booth either they know already or we explain the definition of it. We
don’t have college students that come in and try to get the student rate.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay. ‘Cause we just went through this on the reverse with the
bus thing, we didn’t have a good definition of what student was so and we
wanted college-age students to be able to ride the bus so we had to actually
define the age and the level of school that we were accepting. So, but you’ve
never had anyone come in and say hey, I’m 19 and I’m going to school just, you
know, at UH;
MR. ALLEN: As far as college, we’ve had people try but we do not allow them to pay $2
or $3 to play golf. They’ve got pay the adult rate.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay. If you don’t have to and you don’t get the push back when
they say it just says school?
MR. ALLEN: No. We see it, pretty much everything at the window. But, you just
stand your ground and show them the administrative rules and...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Here I’m gonna make a friendly amendment here so we can
clarify this. So, it would then be, it would be, I would add in no more than 19
years of age and still in high school.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah? Is that okay, Members? Okay. We’ll just add that, Carla,
yeah? Okay. Thank you. Moving on, so your, the superintendent looks like
you ~re just taking out the gender?
MR. ALLEN: Yes. Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
your...

Okay.

Okay.

Begin.., and your timeframes are changing here on

MR. ALLEN: The twilight time typically was, it’s covered in our administrative rules.
In the ordinance it was a little different. So, all of these where there is another
-
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definition in the local administrative rules for the golf course. This is just
what’s in the ordinance. Twilight will start at one, two, or three. So, we have
the option based on the season or the amount of play that we have to choose
the timeframe when we want to institute that half rate.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Okay. And then on the fees, on the bottom of the page.
MR. ALLEN: Right..
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, you’re deleting?
MR. ALLEN: The playing fee and making it just fees

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
MR. ALLEN:
--to go along with the special event so that all fees can be put
underneath one umbrella.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. I see.
MR. ALLEN: And then we’re changing the definition.
CHAIR GUZMAN: To what a fee is?
MR. ALLEN: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: No person or organization.
(inaudible).
questions on that section, Members? Okay.
.

.

.

.

Okay.

Got it.

Any

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just one area under fees that I hope the course has... I
know some of their issues again with the play and it’s between starters and of
course the pro shop, yeah, is do we still have the issues with the groups or old
clubs that let’s say in their heyday they filled four slots, 16 players. They still
ask for four slots but maybe six guys show up. Okay.
MR. ALLEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, until last minute, your starter may not
know he has available times now opening up because they weren’t notified
sufficiently. Are we making them have some kind of payment for holding on to
-
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those slots that now we could’ve used but cannot because the time has
elapsed?
MR. ALLEN: Yes, Councilmember. Currently, the clubs are responsible for calling us
the Wednesday prior to them playing and notifying us if there is a change in the
amount of players that they have. Once they show up, if they come, let’s say
they got 20 and they show up with 10, then they are being held responsible to
pay the no-show fee for the remaining tee times because that’s a loss in revenue
for us. And that was one of the changes that we tried to make initially; instead
of just being a club no-show fee we were gonna have just a no-show fee because
we have the same thing happen with normal tee times. Somebody calls up two
days in advance and makes a couple of tee times and then it’s raining the
morning of and they call up and cancel two minutes before they’re supposed to
tee off; hey, we’re not coming and so and so. We thought about just having a
small nominal fee to try to recoup a little bit of money for that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
tickets do we?

We don’t do.. .what you call those type of rain check

MR. ALLEN: No. We have no rain checks. You do not get your money back. Once
you tee off on number one, if it starts raining then that’s on you. It’s in the
administrative rules.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Moving...
VICE-CHAIR KING: Just a quick question, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: Just because I don’t know ‘cause I don’t play golf, but you allow
them to finish playing if they want to play through the rain?
MR. ALLEN: Yes. Correct. You can play in the rain. As long as there’s not lightning
you can play in the storm all that you like; the 40 miles an hour winds and the
hailing rain, but as soon as someone’s safety is in jeopardy then we remove
everyone from the golf course.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay. But they still don’t get their money back.
MR. ALLEN: They do not

--

VICE-CHAIR KING: And they know that.
-
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MR. ALLEN: --get their... unless we close the course they do not get their money back.
Correct.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, moving on, it looks like you’re deleting.. .we’re on Page 4.
You’re deleting tournament fees.
So, it sounds as though you ‘re just
incorporating everything into the, just the definition of fees which is the prior
provisions. So, that makes sense. The next section, the fee exemptions, the
professional golfers have free, they don’t have to pay the fees.
MR. ALLEN: Correct, Chair. PGA and GCSAA is, that’s the standard. The comped on
when they show verification.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Any questions on this one, Members? Seeing none, okay.
Moving on to the Golf Course Special Fund. Looks like you~re deleting the
proceeds from and you’re deleting playing fees, tournament fees, club no-show
fees.. .yeah, I see, you~re just being consistent. You’re just deleting that narrow
definitions and being more general in saying all fees and permits. Okay.
MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: That’s very simple.
questions? Ms. Crivello?

So, moving on to operations.

Oh, yes? Any

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t know if this is related to what you~re doing, but
in February we talked about submitting a technical inquiry about moving the,
how it would be feasible to repeal the Golf Course Special Fund and report into
the, from the General Fund? Is that...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. You’re correct, Ms. Crivello.
agenda. I haven’t gotten to them.

We have two bills on today’s

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I figure that we do this one easier one first.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: But now this easier one is taking longer than I thought it would be.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: But

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --such is the case. We always feel that the easy ones and then they
turn into the harder ones.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: But,

Vu

get to it. They’re...

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That’s fine. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: We’re almost done. So, we are on the next item, provision, which is
13.16.050, operations.
Looks like you’re... oh, you~re just, just a simple
grammatical correction there. That’s not a problem. Moving on to, so now
you’re deleting that whole section B, C... B and C, what’s going on here?
MR. ALLEN: Chair, my document only goes up to Page 3. I do not have... so I’m sorry.
Say that again. Page 4?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. Page 4 on operations, 13.16.050. You’re deleting section B
and C. It looks like it’s dealing with the starting hours of play.
MR. ALLEN: Correct. We didn’t feel that was something that needed to be in the
County ordinance. That it was more an administrative rule within the Parks
Department or the golf course. If we wanted to fluctuate starting time to make
tee off earlier or extend the tee times later in the day. And then it would also
allow us open time for the special events and other things that might go on;
night golf. Like we wanted to have a night golf tournament. So, it was
something that we just felt could be done more...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Administratively?
MR. ALLEN: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Okay. Any Members do have any problems with this?
Issues or.. .okay. Moving on, so you renumbered D, now it’s B. You’~re deleting
Department of Parks and Recreation shall adopt. So, let’s see, Director may
promulgate... so it’s just saying that the Director can create administrative rules
and then you’re adding in special events?
MR. ALLEN: Correct.

-39-

PARKS, RECREATION, ENERGY, AND
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 3, 2018

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Got it. Any questions on that section, Members? Seeing
none, we’ll move on. It looks like that’s just, foresee the new enumeration, a
letter... sorry. The golf course is deleted. That’s just grammatical, looks like.
Exceptional. So, now you~re going.. .yeah, that’s another grammatical. Sixty, so
you’re adding a slash in there. So, that’s it.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Chair, I have a question.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Members... Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah, I have a question about the new D, no practice golfing shall
be allowed on the golf course except on the driving range. So, what’s.. .I’m just
trying to understand what that means what practice golfing is. Like if I was
taking lessons and I went to play on the golf course, is that considered practice
golf? I mean, I’m sure whatever I do out there would look like practice versus
playing so how do you differentiate?
MR. ALLEN: No. Councilmember, that would be a different thing. You can take
lessons on the course, a playing lesson. What we’re referring to specifically is
the golfers that come out later in the afternoon and they’ll play five balls on one
hole. So, they’re hitting
--

VICE-CHAIR KING: Oh, okay.
MR. ALLEN: --they’re playing, you know, with five different balls.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: So, it’s very slow-paced and it’s taking excessive divots and creating
excessive ball marks. If it was five different golfers, no problem. But, one
person playing like that it’s just...
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: And it wasn’t defined.
VICE-CHAIR KING: So, this is not referring to somebody who’s
MR. ALLEN: Right. It wasn’t defined

--

VICE-CHAIR KING: --new at it. Okay.
MR. ALLEN: --before so we’re trying to define it.
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VICE-CHAIR KING:
asking.

Okay.

Thank you.

I might do that someday that’s why I was

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, I think that’s it. Any questions, Members?
MS. NAKATA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair? On the effective date, section 3, Page 6

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, yes.
MS. NAKATA: --that needs to change.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Effective date. I know we were, we last discussed and vetted this
bill back in February. So, now we have to change this effective date because
the effective date says July 1, 2018. It took us a while to get through this, but
do you have a recommendation, Department, when you want this effective date
to be changed? ‘Cause currently it says July 1, 2018.
MS. NAKATA: We may want to consider whether the FY 2020, July 1, 2019?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Karla? January?
MR. ALLEN: January.
CHAIR GUZMAN: January 1, 2019. Members, any objections? No objections? Okay.
Well friendly amend that. Okay.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, could Staff please get clarification on a couple of the
definitions? There was a statement by the golf course superintendent with
respect to the major tournament definition about reversing that. Currently in
the Code, the language that’s in the brackets is in the Code currently. So, is
the superintendent saying that they do not wish to change that definition at all?
It would remain any event that involves players Statewide or is a
locally-sponsored event consisting of 138 players or more.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr. Allen? Mr. Allen?
MR. ALLEN: I’m sorry. The correction that it is in the document that we made is what
we want.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So...
MR. ALLEN: It’s been so long ago since we went through this, so.

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, I know it was since February of this year. So, it is to be read
as the following
major tournament means any event that consists of a
minimum of 144 confirmed players?
-

MR. ALLEN: Correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: That is correct.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
So, Members, strike what I said earlier.
It’s not reversed.
Everything that is in bracketed shall be deleted. Everything that’s underscored
shall be included and amended. Okay. So, at this time, the Chair will make a
recommendation to pass the following ordinance as amended.
Chair will
entertain a motion.
VICE-CHAIR KING: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: Second.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Moved by Ms. King, seconded by Ms. Sugimura.
discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, say “aye.”

Any further

COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR GUZMAN: All those opposed, say “no”.
“ayes” and two excused. Motion carries.

VOTE:

We have eight.. .wait, sorry, seven

AYES:

Chair
Guzman,
Vice-Chair
King,
Councilmembers Atay, Cochran, Crivello,
Hokama, and Sugimura.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and White.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING OF
CHAPTER 13.16.
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Moving on to the next item within the next bill
within the same item.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Can we take a short break?
CHAIR GUZMAN:
want.

Yes.

Well take a.. .let’s see, let’s take a ten-minute break if you

VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. We’ll be back here at 3:30, Members.
RECESS:

3:17p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:32 p.m.

.

.

.

(gavel)...

CHAIR GUZMAN:
(gavel)... The PRL Committee shall now come back to order.
Moving on to the next sub-item and I’m going to be calling up the, it would be
number three and four and this is the correspondence dated July 12, 2017
regarding the bill for an ordinance amending sections 13.16.040, Maui County
Code, relating to the Waiehu Municipal Golf Course special fund. And that is in
regards to modifying the use of the fund and remove reference to it as being
self-supporting. I’m also gonna be calling up the next item which would be the
correspondence dated February 7, 2018 which deals with the same fund. It’s a
bill for an ordinance repealing the entire section of 13.16.040, the Maui County
Code relating to the Golf Course Special Fund. And in that, as I mentioned, it
would repeal and we’ve received correspondence dated April 19, 2018, from the
Department of Finance, relating to that particular bill of the repeal. Also, if the
Council were to repeal the fund all revenues would be placed into the General
Fund and those revenues could be... could not be earmarked specifically for the
golf course. So, today we have our Finance Department as well as our Parks
and Recreation Department to make comments. We’ll start with the first bill
that I had mentioned about modifying the fund itself regarding self-supporting,
deleting the self-supporting section. Does everybody have that bill in front of
them? Okay.
...

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

.

.

.

(inaudible).
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: That would be the, it’s in your Legis as the correspondence dated
July 12, 2017. Okay. So, we have Ms. Sato is here from Finance. Do you have
any comments in regards to.. .1 know it’s been a while since we’ve last looked at
these two bills and I know that we had some questions on it and some, I guess,
issues as to how the special fund was being utilized. There was such a great, a
substantial amount of money that was being, I guess, placed as an overhead to
the golf course where I think it was a little bit under or over 1 million that had
to be paid for administrative costs and the issue was whether or not that was
even viable because of the fact that it wasn’t really generating revenues to cover
everything. So, it was basically the shortcomings we would have to basically get
from the General Fund and bring it back so it was just basically moving monies
around. So, it didn’t really make too much sense. So, do you have.. .have you
and the Department discussed further regarding this bill itself?
MS. SATO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes?
MS. SATO: Councilmembers, so, from a Finance perspective, there isn’t a requirement
that the golf course has to be an enterprise fund. It could be moved into the
General Fund.
However, after having some discussion with the Parks
Department just a little bit ago and prior to they are looking at different ways to
be able to capture Parks revenue. So, and that might incorporate golf course
revenue as well, so I would think that maybe we would have further discussion
before repealing the golf course fund or changing the language depending on
what their objective is with the other Parks revenue.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Any questions, Members? At this stage, it sounds as though there’s
other discussion. It’s come to my attention that Parks wants to capture
revenue from their other facilities and possibly try to create a different fund to
capture all of their revenues from the various facilities and create a special fund
for it. So, I’m not sure how that will actually work, but at this stage, I would
like to defer this matter just to allow them to try to work it out. Mr. Hokama,
do you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
No.
I think it’s a reasonable request from the
Department, Chairman. You know, part of the implementation that I had
foreseen with the concession provision we’ve placed in the Code, would take
some time, but I would say, yeah, this is one of the more fiscal requirements I
would expect them to do particularly if part of it is to relieve the overall General
Fund with the special funds now that can help supplement some of the key
components that.. .well, it’s a multi-faceted Department. So, again, you know,
we’ll see how it goes. You know, whether it makes sense to have just one turf
-
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management, doesn’t matter if the grass is on the golf course, softball field,
football field, if it’s grass, it comes under turf. You know, I don’t know how you
folks plan to.. .what you would propose to Council as a new policy. Yeah,
because we looking at creating a policy for you to implement that makes sense.
So, I would be open to that. I know you worked hard on the drafts, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I want people to know that we haven’t been sitting
on this. You have not been waiting idly. You have been waiting for some
measurements and what. I would just say that on one of your drafts, the key
component that you’ve brought to light that we should maybe have a little
discussion before your deferral, Chairman, regarding the special fund is I would
be in your support to, if we looking at existing language, to delete the
requirement of self-supporting or self-sustaining through the current revenue
stream. We know it’s not doable so let’s be real with the numbers. Okay. It’s
not really doable right now.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Hopefully, maybe down the road if, you know, we have
a good program. I mean, Torrey Pines runs a program that just on merchandise
sells seven digits a year. Okay. Now our sister county up in Washington,
they’ve created a brand-new U.S. Open course, not as a recreational facility for
the residents, wants to bring economic development as a U.S. Open venue and
now they’re reaping the financial benefits of a business decision that they made
that just happens to be a golf course operation. Okay. So, I looking forward to
Waiehu’s future ‘cause again I would say we have one thing location. Thank
you, Chair.
-

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Thank you for pointing that out in terms
of the existing language of self-supporting. So, this is a special fund and so
because of it’s a special fund any revenues that the golf course gains goes into
the special fund and because it’s a self-supporting entity under the ordinance,
to others.. .it’s overhead charges that the County charges the golf course. And I
believe 12 departments have, I guess, have charged, 12 departments have
charged the golf course these certain amount of monies and so those... so that
charge, those overhead charges, comes out of the fund as well as the salary and
fringe come out of the fund. So, all the money that’s being generated comes
completely out and then they become short, they become in the red. So, we
then take from the General Fund and move that money over. So, if we compare
it to let’s say our baseball fields or our stadium, they’re not self-supporting and
all the revenues that come out of there, they don’t pay for our Parks employees
that maintain the stadium. But, the revenues being generated from the golf
-
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course, it pays for their salaries, pays for our County employees’ salaries. So, I
always felt that was unfair ‘cause they haven’t made revenue, they haven’t been
in the black forever; so why are we having this self-supporting mandate on the
golf course and that’s why I brought this forward. And it all came from when
Mister... Mayor Arakawa wanted to close down the golf course because of that
language, self-supporting, right in the bill. So, we’re back to basically square
one in discussion. So, Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: Thank you, Chair. No, I would support going ahead with at least
putting that language in today because I think that’s relevant and the sooner
we put that in there the sooner we protect the golf course. But I have a
question for Parks Department because when you mentioned they wanted to
defer this until they could look at other fees. Are you considering instituting
new fees for things like swimming pools and tennis courts and basketball
courts? Is that what you’re talking about when you say, you know, putting all
fees into a pot, Department?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Department?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Member King, well, for one fees and any kind of
scheduled fees come from this body who make those decisions. There’s a lot of
other options, again, with Mr. Hokama’s concession bill, getting that back
online. We’re getting it online, actually, with the research that we’re doing.
There’s a lot of dynamics when it comes to concession bills even with looking at
some of the structural changes for the golf course. You know, consultations
with unions, how do we merge everybody? There’s a lot of other moving parts
than just saying let’s put it together and make it one. There are some definitely
concerns with the funding of how our offset of expenses are when it comes to
the enterprise fund. But, again, those are things that we’re trying to work out
right now. When you talk about swimming pools that’s a whole other issue.
We can talk about that all day, again with that cost to run a swimming pool
compared to what the cost is for the golf course. I mean, we dealt with that.
You heard testimony about that through the months. So, those are things that
are definitely ahead of us that we need to face and challenge. Again, we are a
service for the people, for our taxpayers. So, at what point is it a recreational
and health and leisure for our taxpayers and when do we need to make money
for it? So, those are things that we try to bridge every day and I’m sure all of
you get calls when we do raise fees or change structural plans, you folks are the
first to be called. So, it’s a lot more in-depth discussion when it comes to
raising fees.
VICE-CHAIR KING: I understand that. I just want to know is that what you’~re talking
about?
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: I can propose fees all day

--

VICE-CHAIR KING: Are you proposing that?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --is whether you pass it or not.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Are you thinking about proposing that? Is that the direction...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Not from.. .we can find other avenues. I’m not gonna say we’re
gonna propose fees. So, there’s fees we can bring to this body and you can
make that decision.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay. Yeah, I just wanted to know if that’s where you were
headed and I understand that it’s our decision, but I just want to know if you
were headed in that direction. And if you do then hopefully you’ll take it to the
public, you know, have some public hearings and meetings around the
community first.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Well, Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: We’ve had numerous meetings and I can assure you that not
one person wants the fees being raised. So, when we talk about meetings that
we want, we’ve had numerous community meetings for our whole master plan
for the Parks Department and I don’t think there was a group that would say
yes, raise our fees to what would be sufficient to be self-sustaining. So...
VICE-CHAIR KING: Yeah, no, I’ve sat through those meetings, and but I’ve

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: So, yes, you’ve heard.
VICE-CHAIR KING: --never sat through a meeting to raise fees so, you know, that’s
I’m just wanted to find out if that was...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Those meetings were all brought up. Fees were brought up in
all of those meetings. So, again, things like that are a lot of roads to cross, a lot
of bridges to cross on that one.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR KING: Alright, thank you.
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: So, technically this is an enterprise fund although the title says Golf
Course Special Fund. So, when we’re dealing with an enterprise fund, if we
delete the wording self-supporting, it defeats the purpose of an enterprise fund.
And so, we did send a letter out to Finance Department. I believe Mr. Walker, if
you’d like to join us, or Ms. Sato.. .yes. And requesting the, some input in
regards to deleting those wording self-supporting and how that applies to the
GASB standards of a enterprise fund. And so, it was my understanding that
they had written back and said that if we were to delete those, that wording, it
would defeat the purpose of the actual enterprise fund. So, it’s either we repeal
or we go with what I have presented in the first draft here which is basically
deleting, kind of making a hybrid of it as I often do, deleting the word selfsupporting, but also allowing that the. not allowing the monies or the revenues
to be utilized for salary or employment costs, fringe benefits or administrative
overhead costs. So, basically the monies that are generated stay for the utilities
and equipment and the maintenance of the golf course itself. Administrative
costs should not be deducted from the revenue and also salary fringes; that’s all
it’s, that’s all I’m doing. And so, self-supporting, yeah, self-supporting would
then if we included that language it would then allow the overhead cost to be
applied. So, I did kind of a hybrid. So...
VICE-CHAIR KING: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. King?
VICE-CHAIR KING: So, with this document, if we approve this hybrid as you say then
that’s not a problem for the existing enterprise fund designation?
CHAIR GUZMAN: I think it becomes a problem for the accounting purposes and how
they do their reports. And, Ms. Sato, you may want to elaborate further if that’s
an issue.
MS. SATO: Chair, I don’t recall if we actually determined whether or not the wording
self-supporting would be, disqualify it or not. But I think as long as the intent
is for the golf course revenues to support the functions, it would stay as an
enterprise fund... it could stay as an enterprise fund; but it doesn’t have to stay
as an enterprise fund. So, I think by deleting the self-supporting I don’t think it
would have an impact whether it stays as an enterprise fund or it can be in the
General Fund as well.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, Carla, did we receive that letter from Finance that said
otherwise? I just want to verify. Okay. We’re gonna check on that ‘cause I
vaguely remember that there was an issue as to being able to delete that
language. But, why don’t.. .yeah, so why don’t I just go ahead and move
-
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forward to defer this till I can clarify some of this language here. But, I’ll put it
on the next agenda. So, just to let you guys know that we are gonna get back
to this one way or the other. Okay. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Do you mind if I provide some comments on this from the
budgetary side of things, too?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, go ahead.
MR. BAZ: So, the discussion of whether it’s a governmental fund, the General Fund,
or an enterprise fund and the golf fund is.. .it’s important. The Finance
Department, from a reporting standpoint, is looking at GASB 34 statement of
what to report it as; and there is a requirement that if it is, does, meets these,
one of these three different tests then it has to be reported as an enterprise
fund, as a proprietary fund. And by... one of those tests is whether or not it’s
self-sufficient. If its fees were set up for it to be self-sufficient, then it’s required
to be reported as an enterprise fund. The Water Department Charter requires
that it be self-sufficient, same kind of a thing, that’s why the two, those two
funds are considered enterprise funds. So, if you delete that, it deletes the
requirement. to report it to... as an enterprise fund, but it doesn’t necessarily
mean that we can’t report it as an enterprise fund. So, we could keep reporting
it the same manner. So, that’s one function of it and I think that’s important.
The other factor is that whether it’s a governmental fund, whether, you know,
it’s a part of the rest of the County versus a business activity enterprise fund, it
still could be a special fund which like Sewer, like Highways, you know these
other special funds, they are segregated, the revenue that we acquire from those
fees or taxes or whatever we get into those funds is for the purpose of that
special purpose and are expended for those purposes. But, all of those, so it’s
part of a governmental funds, but not necessarily a part of the General Fund.
And so, all of those other special funds, when we do the cost allocation, which
includes the overhead, those special funds are allocated a certain part of that
overhead cost.
So, there’s seven special or enterprise funds that do get
allocated overhead costs. The other General Fund programs and departments,
of course, they don’t get allocated that because it’s part of the General Fund
that is the central service agencies; those departments that you mentioned,
County Council, Mayor’s Office, Corp. Counsel, Finance Department, those are
all, originated out of the General Fund so there’s no reason why the General
Fund would pay itself back. But the special funds, is what we’re saying should
be paying back the General Fund for those functions, right. You know, as a
part of a full-cost allocation, right. To say that these meetings right now cost a
certain dollar per hour, you know, function and we’re providing that for the golf
course right now, you know, that adds to the cost, because we have a golf
course we’re having this discussion and we would have incurred this cost. And
so that way we’re saying okay well, then the golf course fees theoretically would
-
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pay for it; just like Water would pay for it, just like Sewer would pay for it, those
kind of things. So, that’s where the basis of that charge happens and that’s
where the basis of the full-cost allocation plan happens. The policy of whether
or not we charge any of the special funds or the enterprise fund for the
overhead is something that the Council can set independent of what the
language of this bill says. You can decide not to put in the money out of the
golf course to pay the $895,000 in overhead. That’s a decision that the Budget
and Finance Committee could discuss; Council would make that decision on.
But that’s a policy decision that you’re basing on. What we’re doing as the
Administration is providing you with the financial basis and the
recommendation to say these are our costs, these are what we have allocated,
and these are the special funds that should be paying for those costs based on
this study that was done. Whether you agree with the study or not, that’s what
we have in place. So, it’s a, I guess to get to your end outcome, there’s many
ways to get to that end outcome of either not having to transfer General Fund
monies into the golf course fund or to make it look like the golf course is more
self-sufficient or not. I would recommend to you to not include the language
that says that the golf course fund shouldn’t be paying for salaries and things
‘cause I mean that’s the cost of maintaining the facility, right? You know, a lot
of that cost is salaries. So, if we’re not saying that the golf course is paying that
then we should just repeal it completely and make it a part of the General Fund
just like a regular park. So, those are the kind of things that as you’re thinking
about this and deliberating on what options we have available and I wanted to
make sure you have that kind of information to help you make the best decision
possible. So, thank you, Mr. Chair, for that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Yeah and one of the things that was puzzling for me
was that if it’s an enterprise fund and it’s required to be self-supporting,
self-sufficient and it hasn’t been, how could it be under the definition of the
GASB 34? So, but Finances was saying is that it is self-sufficient because
when they’re in the red, they take their General Fund to replace the money that
they used so it’s self-sufficient. But I said yeah, but that’s not the real revenue
that’s being utilized to really keep it afloat. So, and when you compare it to the
soccer fields or the stadiums, they’re not under the same pressures to make
revenue and to take the revenue and pay it for their salaries ‘cause they’re all
Park employees. You know, they’re all getting paid
(inaudible)
salaries. So, those were the dilemmas and so when the issue had came up that
hey, the golf course wasn’t being self-sufficient and the Mayor was questioning
it well, in comparison to the other facilities they don’t have the same type of
requirements or demands on them; and they aren’t self-sufficient. They’re only
self-sufficient because the General Fund replaces the money that they owe for
the overhead charges. So, I’m gonna, you know, there’s more to be discussed I
suppose, but at this point I’m just gonna defer this matter; both sub-items
without objections.
.
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COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused RC, MW)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
PRL-16

WAIEHU MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE
RESTAURANT PROJECT (MISC)

STARTER

BOOTH

AND

CHAIR GUZMAN: So, we’ll go ahead and move on to PRL- 16 which is the Golf Course
Starter Booth and Restaurant Project, and we’ll hear the status on that from
the communication dated May 21st, from the County Clerk. This is, I believe,
we were discussing this in Budget. So, we would need our planner, our Parks
planner. So, if you could give us an update as to what is going on with the
Starter Booth and the Restaurant project and what is the...
MR. YAMASHITA: Yes. Okay, the project began around February and is scheduled to
go for probably another year or so. And the purpose of the project is to do,
come up with conceptual design and do a feasibility study for a new clubhouse
at Waiehu. And so, what I want to tell you is where we are and what the next
steps are. The consultants have spent the last say six months doing research
on site conditions and also looking at starting to think about ideas for what this
new clubhouse will be. So, we’ve had a couple of, we had a couple of open
houses. We’ve also done a few interviews and talked to people and the
consultants have also done some research into the structure and have
essentially found that it’s almost at the end of its useful life. It’s about 56 years
old, built in 1962, there have been no major building improvements other than
retrofitting, parking is inadequate, ADA accessibility is not up-to-date, water
and septic systems and restrooms are inadequate, the starter window and pro
shop relationship don’t work, restaurant space is inadequate, and the cart
storage has been retrofitted and just doesn’t work at all. So, it’s really time for
a change. One of the things they’re working on right now is, as I said,
development of some preliminary concepts. And so, we’ve had, the Parks staff
has had a conversation. We had a phone conference call with the design team
to start working with them on what these options might be and so they’re about
ready to show us these kind of preliminary ideas so we will be meeting with
them over the next few weeks to do that. And once we then work with them to
refine it then we’ll be ready for a public open house and we’re not quite sure
exactly what form that’s gonna take. We’ve talked about.. .we’re certainly gonna
show the drawings at the clubhouse, but also talked about maybe showing
something at First Friday because you do get a cross section of people. So, that
-
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will be the next kind of milestone for us. But, that’s essentially where we are
now; kind of on the cusp of developing some preliminary ideas and then looking
at the financial feasibility of these ideas as well.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Members, do you have any questions? That’s
our update for the project. Okay. Seeing none, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, as we’ve discussed on an earlier item you’ve
agendized today with the superintendent, I think the Director heard that we’re
open to RFPs to go out and have people propose to us what they would like to
potentially do on our property. So, in conjunction to this, Fil be happy to see
what the consultants have, but I’m not gonna commit no $15 million until we
know what we want to do is what we want to do. Okay. So, we may need more
than just a starter and clubhouse; depends what we may want to do there and
adjust accordingly your ordinance vehicle that we’ve worked on the previous
item that may be able to take care some of the Code or legal requirements,
Chairman. So, I would be happy to see what the consultants come up. But, if
they’re only gonna show me a starter and a clubhouse, don’t waste my time. I
going tell you now and don’t ask me for any money. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. And you guys are looking more at a concept of more of
a community all-purpose type clubhouse?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Member Hokama as well. Yeah, you know, as far as the title
what you~re saying on the CIP, it does read Waiehu Golf Course Starter Booth
and Restaurant. But, the real vision is as we’ve mentioned a while back, a few
months back, is getting a whole, making it a full, where it becomes, you know,
more traditional, as well, community center with the vigilance of the community
around that area. So, we talked about making it cultural, you know, tying in
Na Wai Eha or something in that sense where there’s some kind of cultural
aspect to bring that community there to the facility as well. So, yeah, it’s a
more diverse master plan than what you just read in the title, that heading.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So, are we going to, what is the estimated time for some type
of preliminary plans or specs or drawings?
MR. YAMASHITA: Sorry. We should have the preliminary concepts over the next
couple of months and then over the next six months I think we’ll be ready with
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that kind of a final concept or maybe even before that and then move into
maybe more detailed schematics for how this is going to work.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, and we look forward to that presentation.
MR. YAMASHITA: I would say also too just before I stop here that there are several
issues that need to be addressed and as they get into it a little bit more, it’s
really unclear how this is going to turn out. I mentioned the water and sewer
infrastructure and trying to come up with a solution to that. Also, the site is a
rich archaeological area and so that’s another aspect that will take some time to
really get into a little bit more.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Very good. Any further questions, Members? Seeing none,
I’m gonna go ahead and defer this matter without objections.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused RC, MW)
ACTION:

DEFER.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
PRL-26

HAWAIIAN CULTURAL RESTORATION (CC 17-135)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.

Members, moving on to the last item, PRL-26. This is the
Hawaiian Cultural Restoration. May I ask Wendy Taomoto to come down as
well as Guy Hironaka and the Parks Department. Thank you. So, the
Committee is in receipt of the County Communication 17-135, from myself,
relating to the Hawaiian Cultural Restoration. This is basically an update of the
status of the archaeological review. The maintenance portion of the park leased
to the Friends of Mokuula and also the Hawaiian Cultural Restoration Fund
itself.
The other... and other related matters to the Mokuula/Mokuhinia
ecosystem restoration. The Committee may also consider filing the County
Communication 17-135 and other related actions. So, we’ll go ahead and begin
first with Ms. Taomoto on the archaeological status. I know we’ve been waiting
for quite some time to get the, that completed, but can you give us the status
and where we are right now and a basic timeline? And you can elaborate on
the.. .let’s see, what’s going on. I know that you had a meeting with the Corps of
Engineers three weeks ago or two weeks ago? Okay. And give us a status on
that as well.

MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you, Chair. The status of the Archaeological Inventory Survey
for Mokuhinia is that we are still waiting for comments for the U.S. Army Corps
-
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of Engineers and the State Historic Preservation Division. The Army Corps did
come out to do a site visit on August 30, 2018 which I attended amongst other
people and we expect to receive their comment letter any day. As far as SHPD,
if you weren’t aware, the Maui archaeologist did, was... quit SHPD and so we are
working with the State archaeologist, Susan Lebo to complete the SHPD
comment process. I believe they’re interested before they make their comments
in the Army Corps’ comments to our archaeological inventory survey. What I
can say is that based on our site meeting with the Army Corps I don’t expect
any significant comments to the recommendations and conclusions in the
Archaeological Inventory Survey report. But I’m, Army Corps, the County of
Maui, the archaeologists all agree that should we receive the Army Corps’
comments we would work with SHPD to try to complete the final Archaeological
Inventory Survey report by the end of 2018. So, that is what we’re working with
as a target date to file with SHPD a final report.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I know that our timeline was, I believe, last year December or
November of 2017; now we’ve pushed back further. So, what are we looking at
now in terms of timeline?
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you, Chair. The timeline doesn’t necessarily affect anything.
The next phases of the project hasn’t been determined so the timeline doesn’t
really affect anything in particular at this time. Nothing can start on the project
site in terms of archaeological data recovery or reconnaissance or whatever you
want to call it beyond the AIS until the AIS is approved by SHPD in a final
report format. And I’m not aware of any next phase beyond this Archaeological
Inventory Survey for the Mokuhinia portion of the site.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. And you mentioned the approval is, the AIS has
already been approved or is still pending approval from...
MS. TAOMOTO: The draft AIS is pending, the draft AIS report, this volume right here,
this thick document is pending SHPD comments.
Upon receipt of their
comments, the Army Corps’ comments, Cultural Surveys will complete the final
Archaeological Inventory Survey report.
And once that’s submitted and
accepted by SHPD, this AIS process is complete.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: And that is the December 2018 deadline.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So...
MS. TAOMOTO: That I am targeting.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. December 28th.
MS. TAOMOTO: End of calendar year 2018.
CHAIR GUZMAN: This year.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. And then

--

MS. TAOMOTO: Is our goal.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
phase one?

--once that’s completed then we can move on to the potentially

MS. TAOMOTO: So, once this report is completed for the Mokuhinia, work on the
Mokuhinia portion of the site can move forward which includes burial
treatment, plan can be submitted, a data recovery, archaeological
reconnaissance plan can be submitted. But, until this report is reviewed,
commented, accepted by SHPD, those things cannot be submitted to SHPD; it’s
a procedural thing with SHPD.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Members, have any questions on the archaeological portion? Okay.
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so, in relation to artifacts, I
know there’s been some recovered in the past. Since we have this letter of
Friends of Mokuula relinquishing license and leases and obviously we’ve taken
back the parking lot that was funding their, the project, where is all of that?
Anything that’s been uncovered to date?
MS. TAOMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. Go ahead.
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MS. TAOMOTO: The archaeological artifacts that were recovered from the site and
removed which is in particular certain iwi, that is with the Cultural Surveys
Hawaii’s office as is the protocol with SHPD and they~re in charge of it until the
process is completed and a burial treatment plan is in place which would then
put the iwi into its fmal resting place. In the interim, it’s, as I was told, it’s the
process is it gets held by the archaeologist company responsible which is
Cultural Surveys Hawaii. So, Friends of Mokuula does not have the artifacts
that was removed from site through the MS process and I am not aware of
anything other than the AIS artifacts. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, Chair. Maybe, I mean, I know we’re
focusing on the AIS for Mokuhinia, but I am sort of looking at this whole
encompassing the entire kind of project in a sense because it’s sort of
connected. But, there has been, there’s a whole entire inventory list from a
1999 report; there are artifacts. So, it’s very disturbing to me if we do not know
where they are right now. If you’re only focusing on this current investigation
under Ms. Greig then what, I mean there’s things that happened prior to her
and this latest AIS.
MS. TAOMOTO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, where is that?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah, let me clarify. So, are there any prior artifacts that Friends of
Mokuula have in their possession that you~re aware of and have you, if you~re
not aware of, have you sent a letter in regards to whether they possess
artifacts?
MS. TAOMOTO: Chair, I am not aware of any artifacts the Friends of Mokuula have in
their possession and I have.., speaking Department of Management, for the
Managing Director, as I’m representing today did not send a letter requesting,
asking if they have any artifacts. I can on, take that back to the Managing
Director if we, if he receives a written request to ask or pose that question. I
may also.. .the archaeologist might know, the Cultural Survey’s archaeologist
may have the answers you are seeking, too.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Yeah, at least for this Committee’s purposes, can we request
that from the Managing Director’s Office or to follow up, any standard protocol
in line of requesting any type of artifacts that are in their possession, in Friends
of Mokuula’s possession to return it to the, I guess it would be, would it be to
us or would it be to the, it would be for the inventory?
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MS. TAOMOTO: I think the question you’re asking and I don’t think it would be a
problem to ask the question and if I can just get it in writing because I’m here
representing the Managing Director, but I’m part of the Department. So,
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. Correct.
MS. TAOMOTO: --yeah, if you can please ask it in writing? But, I can get the answers
or assist in getting the answers. The question I think you’re asking is to ask
the Friends if they are in possession and then further we would need
clarification from SHPD perhaps or our project archaeologist may know the
answer, what is the protocol that would need to be taken if they were in
possession of artifacts?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, correct. And you’re...
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay. Being that they’re no longer have a lease with the County?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. And for the Member’s information, Parks Department, which
I believe Roxanne Teshima is here as well can verify that we did receive a letter
from Friends of Mokuula back in July terminating the lease. So, they are, I
believe that is effective August 12th so it’s already terminated? Can you verify
please?
MS. TESHIMA: That’s correct, August 12th.
CHAIR GUZMAN: August 12th. So, I believe everyone has a copy of that. And just to
state on the, record that as the, I guess a background I can relay is that this
Committee had done, or at least requested an audit and had gone through
several meetings, I think more than eight, to try to get the accounting corrected
because according to the lease agreement they were to supply us, the County, a
yearly audit and it wasn’t being complied with; either it was our fault for not
going through with it, requesting it over the many years. But when I became
Chair, I was requesting these documentation to come forth. But, long story
short, it never, we never did make resolution on it. But then at some point we
had decided to create a Hawaiian Cultural Restoration Revolving Fund
regarding the parking lot and the parking lot monies was then to be placed into
this revolving fund. And the purpose for the establishment was for the
Hawaiian Cultural Restoration Revolving Fund shall provide funds for the
preservation and restoration of the Hawaiian historic and cultural sites and
artifacts relating to Mokuula and the ponds in Mokuhinia at Lahaina, Maui,
-
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including maintenance of the site. So, all the money is still there. It’s been
collected I believe on a weekly or monthly basis and so we had relayed it to
Friends of Mokuula that if they needed funding they are more than welcome to
come forth during the Budget like any other nonprofit and request funding and
they did not do so this last Budget. And so, I was wondering why not. They
were more than welcome to come and get all that money in there. They just
needed to follow the same procedure as all the nonprofits. But then I believe in
July we then received the letter that they no longer wanted to, they wanted to
terminate the lease. So, that’s one of the issues that we have before us is it still
needs to be maintained. The property still needs to be maintained. Although
the property is executive ordered to us by the State, it will automatically revert
back to us, to Parks jurisdiction, and it would be Parks responsibility to
maintain the premises. Right now, I’ve heard that there’s a lot of growth; the
grass and weeds have somewhat inundated the area. And so, this is another
issue that we need to discuss; whether or not we should RFP a new
organization to come forward and be that point like Friends of Mokuula and
apply for those monies that are in the fund, in the Hawaiian Cultural
Restoration Revolving Fund. And I’d like to ask Finance what is our accounting
so far that we have in the fund that we’ve collected so far from the parking
services?
MR. WALKER: Thank you, Chair, Committee Members. The fund balance as of the
end of September is $360,673.04
CHAIR GUZMAN: So we have about 300,000 there and so I’m sure the Parks
Department would like some direction if they’d like to, if you’d like to see an
RFP go out for a new organization to come in and apply for those monies or we
can just put it in the jurisdiction of the Parks and have them start maintaining
the premises ‘cause it does revert back to the Parks. It is executive ordered to
us. Ms. Sugimura?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So just kind of curious.
thought it was a nonprofit. I could be wrong, but

So, Friends of Mokuula, I

--

CHAIR GUZMAN: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: --if.. .it is?
CHAIR GUZMAN: There’s two. There was a, there was.. .yeah. There was two. There
was a nonprofit and a profit entity.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, is it just a matter of filling that position instead
of creating a whole new organization?
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CHAIR GUZMAN: No. Well, we’re looking for... okay, so to moving forward in the next
phase and this is what, where Ms. Taomoto is so important and that’s why I
kept her, tried to latch on to her to keep her still on this project is that the next
phase is going need to be dealt with the community and the ancestries to how
we are doing to develop and how are we going to proceed with the dig and the
presentation, just moving it forward for the... ‘cause it’s one thing we did the
archaeological inventory, but what is the next phase? Yes, phase one, phase
two, phase three. And, Ms. Taomoto, if you would like to elaborate on what the
next phase would entail and why it’s so important to have a organization that
would be like Friends of Mokuula on the ground?
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you, Chair. The next phase after the acceptance of this
Archaeological Inventory Survey report for Mokuhinia is there’s two almost
concurrent phases. The data recovery plan needs, a data recovery plan needs
to be submitted by the County for this site because anything that’s gonna affect
the surface of the ground, that needs to be in place before we do any digging to
put it simply. The second component is a decision like Councilmember
Guzman said between whether we’re gonna restore the Mokuhinia, which is the
pond, then there’s a buffer which we will call the perimeter wall which is part of
both sites; you know, you can’t do one without the other. So, the pond which is
the Mokuhinia, the perimeter wall, and then the Mokuula which is the island.
There’s three different components and it depends on in discussions with the
community, with the archaeologist, with SHPD, you know, one, the report, if
you read the AIS report, it states the two options island before pond, pond
before island. Which one you choose is, matters in how you going treat the site
and the protocols, the requirements. And so, this is a community decision.
The phasing, if we go with the wall... I think if you didn’t get a chance to read it,
the spirit I see from the document is that it’s probably better for the community
to proceed with the perimeter wall restoration to some extent first because the
wall as proven through our archaeological inventory is pretty much damaged;
and some portions, you know, significantly damaged. There’s not a likelihood
that a lot of the perimeter walls are intact which means that structurally if we
just go with island and then we come up to the wall, you’re not gonna find the
wall there because it’s fallen apart. And so, I think it’s prudent that we look at
maybe doing the perimeter wall first. And just talking about the wall, when you
went to the community meetings, that, just to do the whole perimeter wall is a
big undertaking. So, what we had suggested is focusing on key components of
the wall or portions of the wall that have significance; like during the AIS, there
was a portion of the wall that was fairly intact. So, the archaeologists kind of
suggested that if we tackle that intact wall section first and fully restore that
first, then we can, the rest of the wall restoration and how it’s restored and the
method of restoration can be fairly consistent with the original method of
construction. If we restore a section of the wall that’s completely destroyed and
repair it without knowing and restoring a fully intact section or fully excavated
-
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and looking at a fully intact section, when we come to the intact section it may
not match; the style of construction or method of construction. So, those
things need to be discussed with the community in much more detail than we
were able to do through the AIS process. It’s kind of a going back and forth
with the community, giving them options. So, when Councilmember Guzman
talks about phases, it could take all kinds of direction depending on the
community feedback we get. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
Okay.
And that’s what’s most important.
And I believe
Ms. Cochran, I have seen her at a couple of the meetings, the community
meetings that we have. And you’re very well of what it takes to move forward.
We as a government entity can go only so far, but we need to have the
community input and a organization that will be that spearhead to make
contact with the families, the historical families, and how will this restoration
look like in the end and where do we begin and what portion do they want to
see restored first because there are some things that they may feel more
important than others and what in the end is this restoration gonna look like?
So, without that community point organization, we’re gonna need to either do a
lot of outreach and there might be more work to be done on the Parks side if
we’re going to proceed independently as a government entity without a point of
reference for a new organization.
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: So, Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER SUGIMURA: I hear what you’re saying, but my question was, so I
probably was not clear enough, is why are we trying to, if we already have the
entity, Friends of Mokuula as a nonprofit, I don’t know if that might be a unit
out there that’s not part of the County which sounds like that’s what we want,
you know, a point person out there, why aren’t we trying to embrace Friends of
Mokuula? I know Blossom Feiteira, at one point, was that. Akoni Akana was
another name that I heard and Shirley, I don’t know her last name, but these
are names that I heard that were part of Friends of Mokuula. But why aren’t
we using that entity or are they disbanded?
CHAIR GUZMAN: I’m not sure on their status. I’m only aware of the letter that was
received on their request to terminate the lease and so maybe Parks has more
of an information as to what their status is, Friends of Mokuula? But, I can tell
you on a personal level that I and my office has extended the invitation to them
to apply for those funding and go through the normal course and protocol as
any other nonprofit and the money has always been there. It has always been
collected and stayed in the revolving fund. It’s just that they didn’t do it and so
we, right after Budget, just received a letter saying that they were terminating.
-
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So, if Parks, maybe, could elaborate further on maybe the status of whether or
not.. .well, as we currently stand, the lease is terminated. So, we’ve either gotta
open it up for an RFP or we move forward as take full control; let the Parks
Department move forward with maintenance. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. So, in the meantime, because it
has been reverted back to us, the County, I look at that area every day, it’s the
back wall of my church and I care take the cemetery there so I see it and it is
need of maintenance; in particular the area between the church wall, the tennis
courts, and we all know. So, I think in the meantime, definitely we’ll need Park
services currently, but also I think it is very imperative that we create an RFP
and start sending that out for people to apply in order to utilize the money for
truly what the mission and intent and purpose has always been for that money.
I don’t want to go back couple decades as to the entity that has now
relinquished the control over the area, but it came about because we saw a lack
of the utilization of this funds for its main purpose, mission, and intent. So,
that kind of brings us here today, but I would like to see a little bit of work on
behalf of the Parks, as best as they can. But in the meantime, I surely wanna
get an outside nonprofit to come in and take over. I’ve have had discussions
with other entities and there are people out there more than willing and able,
qualified and professional to take that on, but we haven’t actually officially put
out, you know, the call for RFP at this time.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I guess what the question would be to Parks is what is your plans?
And number one, where do you intend to go with this? Obviously, we have
maintenance issues going on and I guess the other prong would be according to
the language of the Hawaiian Cultural Restoration Revolving Fund, those
monies shall be provided for funding for the preservation and restoration of the
Hawaiian historical cultural sites at Mokuula and Mokuhinia. So, is there an
ability for Parks to subcontract some type of maintenance in that?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? So, yeah, to answer that question again we’re back to
that, going back to all of the open space land that we’ve purchased. I’ll treat it
as that because now we’re being converted back to open space that wasn’t
maintained by the Parks Department and now it’s coming back to the Parks
Department. So, if that was the case, again, we’ll go back to funding and
manpower because we haven’t been maintaining those acreages there, that is
gonna take some of that manpower back, funding, or using that current
funding for an outside maintenance contract based on that to upkeep that in
the interim until we find a new 501 or nonprofit to go and run that. Along with
that as well, is just the basic use of that park and as Member Cochran can
agree, 505 basketball courts, the tennis courts have a major neglect because of
the fact that was supposed to a part of the major overall plan for Mokuula. So,
in the event that it is not the fact and we have some years to go now, ten years
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at least so we can go and redo some of those courts, the reason the Department
never went through with kind of getting that back up to par was because of the
lifespan. We didn’t want to put money into it and it was gonna be one of things
that we’re gonna knock it down years down the road. And four years ago when
I first got here, it was like okay we’re gonna close everything off because it was
Mokutula was moving forward and it seems like we maybe a little step
backwards. So, those are other obstacles that this body can also kind of
entertain that okay do we now get our parks systems back in West Maui up to
par because we are limited as well with basketball courts, tennis courts there
and then restore or maintain the gated area between the church, the old back
tennis court in the backside where the baseball field is as well, use that
maintenance money to maintain that area until we can figure out where this
master plan is going. So, those are all, you know, other plans, not just with
maintenance, but a lot of other obstacles that we’re facing from the Parks
Department. But, until then, we’re almost gonna treat it like open space
because it’s land that we’re getting back that we were never budgeted or
man-powered for.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, currently as it stands it looks like there’s overgrowth so you~re
just, so what you~re saying is you’re just gonna allow the overgrowth to keep
growing? And treat it like open space like what normally...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, yes, basically right now there’s some overgrowth. We did
do, maybe a year ago, we did hire a contractor, maybe a little over a year ago,
actually Mokuula did that and they did clear out that lot and in which the fence
went up and Ms. Taomoto was part of that as well. So, but there is the shrubs
are coming back; there’s no question about it. There is a, somewhat of a
campsite kind of impeding between us and the Waiola Church and the daycare
there. So, we are aware. But we try to clean that up and as we can, but to do a
daily maintenance on that, again, with the shortage of manpower we already
have currently in West Maui it’s going to be an obstacle. There’s a lot of acreage
as well. And that would probably realistically use a tractor mower and again it
can’t even go on there with the sacred ground, with the kind of grounds that it
is ‘cause we’re gonna dig. You know so, there’s a lot of these obstacles that we
rather go contract it out if that was the case. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, according to the language in the Hawaiian Cultural Restoration
Revolving Fund, the only way that you can take money out is through the
Council appropriation during the Budget to appropriate it to whoever’s applying
for it. So, even now as we sit, I don’t know, I have to reference to Mr. Hokama.
Could they possibly come in do a budget amendment or to access some of that
money to try to subcontract?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would say Mr. Wong just needs to sign off a bill for an
ordinance transmittal and we can consider it, Chair. And to me, it makes sense
to use the fund to maintain the property.
CHAIR GUZMAN: ‘Cause that’s, we’re not diverting from the intent of the fund. It’s
just that the only obstacle I see here is that it cannot be, the balance cannot be
appropriated unless by the Council. The Council makes the appropriations to
the fund. That’s what the language says.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I would say we can justify health and safety
purposes for the appropriation
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --to maintain the property in a safe manner, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. Just temporarily until we can get some type of or whether or
not the Department is going to decide to take over and move from here
independently or RFP out for another organization to spear this into the
community ‘cause that’s what the intent with, always the intent was the
restoration and how we gonna get there and what will it look like. Without that
community component I fear that us doing it independently may not necessarily
be what the community wants too. So, we have to be very cautious about that.
Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Thank you, Chair. You know, my heart feel hurt about
some of this discussion. First phase I think we have kuleana to keep the
property clean. Yeah. So, whether it be through an RFP process of who’s
gonna be the janitor of the land, somebody gotta clean ‘em. Keep the parking
lot clean, keep the park land clean; whether it’s Parks Department or whether
it’s contracted to some kind of field janitor, somebody needs to keep that place
clean. But the longer vision, I think we need to see what the County’s kuleana
is. What that place is is sacred land. That is the chief’s house. That was the
chief’s hale. That’s why the push to restore that cultural sacred site, that is a
wahi pana. So, it’s not about oh, find somebody else who going take care. We
are the ones that have been given the stewardship of that sacred spot, the
County of Maui. We are the stewards. It is not a park for basketball. You
know, the history of that, they once put a statement on the Hawaiian people
and the culture by putting a horse track on that. And then after the horse
track, they put baseball field. Then they put basketball field. The colonization
came to the king’s house. We not going, we will not condone that kind of
statement of oppression to continue that kind of use of a sacred land. Why for
20 years these people said we need to restore this site? This project going last
before all of us. You know, it’s a kuleana we gotta carry and solve it. This is
-
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just a temporary problem. Somebody gave up. Who we going hand off to? We
need to have a call out to the community. You know, all, all Native Hawaiian
agencies should be stepping forward and assist us in restoring this cultural
site. This was the king’s house. This, at one time, was the capitol of Hawaii
nei, not Honolulu. That’s how important this location is. So, step one, find
some janitor and justify that expense from that fund. Step two, we need to
reinvigorate, reawaken our community to help us, the County of Maui, to carry
forward this stewardship of this sacred site and make the plan. Somebody’s
gotta make the call. Do we go the island first? Do the other wall? It’s just we
no can spin.., if the goal was to restore this cultural site, then that’s the goal.
Let’s move forward. Not just put Band-Aids, you know. We get chance to do
something great and restore the dignity and the heritage of where we are. I
mean, it’s like you’ve been given a chance to restore the pyramid, but you don’t
know what to do. We get chance. But, for now, yeah, somebody dropped the
ball. Get the janitor, keep the place clean. Show respect. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Atay. Any further... Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: I know I have said this before about the other components of the
project. I’m assigned to the Mokuhinia project, but there is the Mokuula and I
know that in discussions with SHPD, they may come back with an opinion. If
we ask the question formally that an Archaeological Inventory Survey still needs
to be completed for the Mokuula. I talked about the daily recovery plan.
Regardless of what we do, maintenance we can do as long as we not
ground-altering, but the data recovery plan is something that the County is the
only entity that can undertake because we are the ones with the executive order
from the State. So, that needs to be done regardless like, Chair, I mean
Councilmember Alika said, you know, what we do we gotta have the data
recovery component; that’s something you guys can move forward with. The
other component is a decision to initiate the AIS for the Mokuula because I
know in conversations with the Friends, assuming they were gonna keep the
lease and be able to move forward with the restoration under the Friends of
Mokuula, they were, they understood that they would need to breach this
conversation with SHPD at some point whether an Archaeological Inventory
Survey still needs to be completed for the Mokuula. So, the County needs to
ask I guess that question formally at some point. It’s just that in the, you
know, in the context of the AIS for the Mokuhinia, it’s not the conversation to
have ‘cause we keep it separate, yeah, because of the Federal funding. But, I
know I said it before but I wanted to, just a friendly reminder that there is a
question whether an AIS process has been completed for the Mokuula and that
still needs to be answered before you guys think that or the County thinks we
can just go forward with a daily recovery plan for Mokuula.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: No. No. I mean like, for instance, and that’s where the community
was so involved. Are we gonna do Mokuula or the pond first? Vice versa and
there’s certain sites within there that are significant that do they want us to
restore that portion versus other portions? And that was what the discussions
were in the community right, Ms. Cochran? Was like what sections? So,
without... and also the families were there, the ancestors.
So, that’s a
component that is always necessary in these types of restorations. So, you’~re
absolutely correct, Mr. Atay, we definitely need to make a call out. But, we are
still in the process of making sure our archaeological inventory is moving
forward. But, just to try to get my stress on requesting the Department to move
forward on the maintenance portion temporarily until we figure out what to do
or until you guys come up with a plan and at least present it to us. Okay. Any
further.. .yeah, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, so, Chair, I think first of all my initial issue is
the whole we need someone whether Parks can manage or not or have
some.. .Punana Leo’s right next door now. I mean, they have to look at that,
that tennis courts and the whole campsite of our unsheltered. They have
nowhere to go. But, they keep to themselves, they’re there, but it’s not safe.
It’s not a pleasant site for our, a school to be looking at that every single day
and the overgrowth is becoming more so. I’m not sure who brought in a
backhoe or something to clear it and pretty recently, but after these rains a lot
of it grew back because those are new cubby holes again. So, again, if just that
section could be maintained until we figure out the rest, I think that’s so critical
and crucial right now. And I think the church has been reaching out to try and
get answers. The church has been reaching out to the church, I mean the
school to the church, the church to the Parks and we’ve just sort of been in this
limbo and we continuously see this growth and this, you know, growing and it’s
not healthy for everyone all the way around. So, but besides trying to figure out
all this other stuff, I think if there’s any way to initially get that tackled for now
and then we move on because, as Mr. Atay says, it’s one of the key sacred
places of this entire archipelago, I feel and I know. So, if just that can happen
out of this meeting we can move forward on the aspect first; but RFPs for sure.
We need to get out there with that because I know that the Parks has a lot
going on, but I think other entities and they don’t have the expertise and
professionalism to do this type of work this fund is set up to do. But, I know
there are people out there. We just need to send out the...
CHAIR GUZMAN: The call out.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The call, yeah, the kahea and the call and get
applications going and start vetting that process through.

-

65

-

PARKS, RECREATION, ENERGY, AND
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
October 3, 2018

CHAIR GUZMAN: Definitely. So, again, Parks, you’ve heard it from our Chair, of
Budget. It will be acceptable if you guys want to utilize this fund. There’s
300,000 there and if you want to come in with a budget amendment to
subcontract temporarily some maintenance people if you don’t have the
manpower or the budget, then it appears Mr. Hokama said that, you know, he’d
be willing to hear an amendment. Okay. Got it? Airight. So, I’m gonna... Mr.
Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Chair, just another continuing thought. I know the first
phase is to deal with the keeping the place clean and all that. But, in the long
range, the long range, what we talking about is this is a museum.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: It just so happen to be an outdoor museum. But, we
should be able to maybe question is it Parks that should be taking care of this
museum or should there be an art curator museum person; and seeking
funding on State and Federal, national level of support other than just
generating money from the parking lot to handle this project. We need to look
bigger and beyond because this is a cultural restoration project. This is a
rebuilding of a museum of what was once a king’s palace. And so, if we change
the terminology and go after other funding sources to get it to the finish line...
CHAIR GUZMAN: And I think that’s what was the intent, was okay, if.. .we do have
that 300,000 and it’s growing; that was only a year, you know. From one year
we have 300,000. So, what more by the end of this year, you know, 2019 it’ll
probably double, 600,000, so it is very viable and practical to find an entity, an
organization that has the expertise that does these types of restorations, you
know, worldwide or, you know, working in partnership with a local entity.
These worldwide type global restoration entities that do that like the pyramids,
things like that. This is, like you said, this is a very, very historical site and we
should look for an organization that has a complete entourage of expertise.
Yeah, I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER ATAY: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So, that being said, Members, I’m gonna.. .thank you very much for
the update, Parks. I’m gonna go ahead and defer this matter again.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (Excused RC, MW)
ACTION:

DEFER.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. And this will be, this will conclude our items on
today’s agenda. I’m sorry I had you guys a little late. Thank you. Adjourned.
(gavel).

ADJOURN: 4:50 p.m.
APPROVED BY:

DON S. GUZMAN,,~2Chair
Parks, Recreation, FKnergy, and
Legal Affairs Committee
prl:min: 181003:kt

Transcribed by: Kimberly Tabon
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